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In 2002, PETsMART executed 
against our strategy.We grew. And we
built the platform for a strong future. 

But we’re still hungry. 

And we won’t stop until we’re satisfied.

PETsMART, Inc., is the largest specialty retailer of services and solutions for the lifetime needs of pets. 

The company operates more than 590 pet stores in the United States and Canada, as well as a 

large pet supply catalog business and the Internet’s leading online provider of pet products and information 

(www.petsmart.com). PETsMART provides a broad range of competitively priced pet food and supplies, 

and offers complete pet training, grooming and adoption services. 
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1

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2000 2001 2002 

(In thousands, except margins and per-share amounts) 

T O TA L  R E S U LT S

Net Sales $ 2,224,222 $ 2,501,012 $ 2,695,184 

Net Income (loss) $ (30,904) $ 39,567 $ 88,855 

Operating Cash Flow $ 110,700 $ 189,994 $ 222,770 

Earnings (loss) Per Share $ (0.28) $ 0.35 $ 0.63 

Total Debt $ 253,936 $ 341,387 $ 167,007 

Margin 23.8% 26.9% 29.2% 

NET INCOME
(LOSS)

(in millions)

PET SERVICES
REVENUE

(in millions)

MARGIN

(by percentage)

TOTAL
SALES

(in billions)
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Our
growth
and strength

continue.

April 28, 2003

Dear Shareholders:

PETsMART proved its strength in 2002.

In a tough climate, we performed 

and, building on 2001’s accomplishments,

we completed eight quarters of 

positive results. We grew pet services,

completed a state-of-the-art distribution

system, reformatted more of our stores

and continued to build a customer-

focused culture. 

We earned $0.63 per share in 2002,

compared to last year’s $0.35. Included

in our 2002 results is a charge of 

$13.2 million net of tax, or $0.09 per

share, related to a legal settlement with

former shareholders of Pet City

Holdings. Our topline sales grew to

$2.7 billion and comparable store

sales grew 9.6 percent. Margins were

up 231 basis points—our third 

consecutive year of growth—and we

generated $223 million in cash from

operations. Pet services sales grew

29 percent and we reduced inventory

per store by 9 percent. 

Those impressive numbers reflect the

work we’ve done to reposition our

strategy and transform the business.

Based on our early results, we think

this is the beginning of a business that

will continue to drive growth and

shareholder value for years to come. 

“We accomplished a great deal in 2002, but we’ve only 
just begun to explore our potential, and we’re confident 
that much of the upside still remains.”

Philip L. Francis, 
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Robert F. Moran, 
President and 

Chief Operating Officer
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Our strength and reliability come from a

potent combination I like to call “young

initiatives”— strategic imperatives 

that can generate traffic, repeat visits, 

sales and financial returns now and 

for several quarters to come. These 

initiatives give us the gift of time to

develop and test new ideas that will

sustain our momentum going forward. 

With six forward distribution centers

now open, our work to build a 

state-of-the-art distribution system is

complete, and can handle our growth

for at least the next three to four years.

The distribution system improves 

in-stocks, reduces inventory, and allows

us to reformat our stores around the

needs and aspirations of our customers. 

With more than two-thirds of the chain

now in the new format and the rest 

to be completed in 2003, we believe

the remodeling program, coupled 

with our other young initiatives, can

drive sales growth for at least the

next 24 months. 

In 2003, we’re adding at least 60 net

new stores in the new format. We

currently believe our ultimate build-out

in North America can be  approximately

1,200 PETsMART stores. 

We have the industry’s broadest 

product selection and, using category

management, we’re better aligning our

buying and merchandising decisions

with the needs of our customers.

We’re constantly reviewing various

product categories and we believe

there is plenty of room for additional

sales and margin expansion.

Pet services continue to be an engine of

profitable growth. With our grooming

and training businesses growing at

nearly 30 percent a year for the past

two years, we're now testing new

service adjacencies. Initial test results in

two stores of a boarding and daycare

business called PETsMART PETsHOTEL™

suggest we may have found a profitable

venture that can expand the trading

area and drive growth in other services.

In fact, we’re confident enough in the

PETsHOTEL concept to expand the

test in 2003, with seven new hotels 

in key markets. 

Finally, there is our work to provide

superior service and an exceptional

customer experience. We’ve made

enormous strides in transforming

PETsMART from a task-driven company

to a culture of customer focus. While 

we’ve made much progress, there’s

plenty of work to do and we believe

there's also plenty of upside. So,

everyone’s yearly bonuses—starting

with store managers and ending 

with Bob and me—are tied in part 

to our performance in key customer

service metrics. 

With the business strong and growing,

we’re keenly focused on driving 

profitability and building our financial

strength. As promised, we began to

leverage general and administrative

expenses in 2002 and expect that

trend to continue. In July 2002, we

completed a successful secondary

offering of PETsMART stock and we

continue to improve our strong 

balance sheet.

We accomplished a great deal in

2002, but we’ve only just begun to

explore our potential. We refuse 

to rest on our laurels or become

complacent. We have a sharp, 

unwavering focus on our strategic

priorities and we’re intent on 

executing them at every level of the

business. When it comes to driving

profitable growth and creating 

shareholder value, we’re still hungry. 

Sincerely,

Philip L. Francis 
Chairman and CEO

“We’ve made enormous strides in transforming 
PETsMART from a task-driven company to a 
culture of customer focus.” 

3
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Building the
brand.

Building a better store  By the

end of 2003, virtually every store

in our chain will be reformatted

around our customers’ needs. The

store format organizes product 

by pet type, making it easier and

more enjoyable to shop. It promotes

product adjacencies and cross-selling,

and puts new emphasis on pet

services. And ultimately, it positions

PETsMART as the place to go for

all the stages of a pet’s life.

Creating trust  We’re strengthening

the business by establishing

PETsMART as the recognizable

symbol of Total Lifetime Care™—

the destination and the trusted source

for any pet need, at any life stage. 

In 2002, we began aligning our

advertising and in-store displays to

create a unique and differentiated

PETsMART brand. These marketing

efforts speak directly to our 

customers and help differentiate us

from the competition, establishing

the PETsMART brand as the leader

in the industry. 

PETsMART is building a solid business, providing 
a compelling offering and establishing our company as
the symbol for Total Lifetime Care™ for pets.
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Meeting customer needs  

The PETsMART experience begins

with product selection. We’ve

always featured a broader range of

products than any competitor, and

our work in category management

helps build on this fundamental

strength. We regularly review major

product categories, find efficiencies

in our vendors’ processes, and

adjust the assortment to fulfill the

changing wants and needs of 

customers. And, we believe our

everyday low price strategy gives

customers great value and provides

us with a competitive edge. 

In June 2002, we opened our sixth

forward distribution center and

completed building a state-of-the-art

distribution system. These centers

improve in-stocks, drive cost-

efficiencies, and push down store

inventories, which gives us 

more cash to invest back into 

the business. To us, it’s a better

executed, more efficient business.

To the customers, it means the

right product is on the shelf when

they need it.

Developing pet services  Our pet

grooming and training services 

are strong and growing. In 2002,

we added 800 new pet groomers,

and educated them in 93 of our own

academies. During this extensive

training, each new groomer learns

the safety and technical skills of

grooming and the high standard

and quality of PETsMART’s 

customer service. 

Our accredited pet trainers make

customer connections through

positive-reinforcement training

classes and casual conversations 

in the aisles. They’re experts 

in the field and knowledgeable

resources for advice and counsel 

on pet care. 

In two of our Phoenix stores, 

we’re testing a new PETsHOTEL

concept. The hotel offers boarding

and daycare for dogs and cats 

at a state-of-the-art facility with

knowledgeable associates at an

affordable price. It features 24-hour

supervision, an on-site veterinarian,

air-conditioned rooms and suites,

daily specialty treats and play

times. We’ll continue testing the

PETsHOTEL concept in seven

more stores during 2003. If the

tests succeed, we’ll begin rolling

out hotels in key markets in 2004.

Pet services are more than an

engine of profitable growth. They

drive return visits, build customer

loyalty and trust, and give us 

the credibility to try, test and move

into new services that meet our

customers’ needs.
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“To us, it’s a better executed, more efficient business. 
To the customers, it means the right product is on the 
shelf when they need it.”
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“We’re aligning everything we do—from how we recruit, 
hire and educate our people to how we manage our 
operations and finances—with our goal of delighting 
customers every time they visit.”

Building the
bond.

Listening to our customers

PETsMART is building a company

unsurpassed in providing the 

highest quality service and shopping

experience. We’re aligning 

everything we do—from how we

recruit, hire and educate our 

people to how we manage our

operations and finances—with 

our goal of delighting customers

every time they visit. 

Our associates, who we call Pet

Detectives, talk to customers about

their pets, their needs and their

questions. Using their strong product

knowledge, and by sharing pet 

stories or similar experiences, our

associates build relationships, and

can transform one-time visitors into

loyal, life-long PETsMART customers. 

Educating our associates  People

come to work for PETsMART

because of their passion for pets.

Through education and training,

we turn that passion into expertise. 

We use role-playing to give associates

hands-on experience in approaching

customers, developing a rapport,

understanding issues and providing

solutions. We also teach our people

to be knowledgeable about pet

care and products, so no customer

is left with unanswered questions. 

6

PETsMART knows how
customers feel about their
pets. Understanding that
relationship, nurturing 
it, and helping it grow is
the backbone of our 
business, and an important
competitive strength.
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We’ve developed a thorough 

and comprehensive curriculum on

PETsMART, its products and its

services that each associate and

manager completes immediately

after starting with the company.

Our managers also are well 

trained to properly run the store

operations, understand the business, 

communicate the objectives and

coach their associates. 

Speaking to our customers

Our direct marketing functions,

which we integrated into the business

in 2002, play an important role in

speaking to our customers. Our

Web site and catalogs support the

stores and enhance the PETsMART

shopping experience. With more

than 250,000 customers a month

looking on the Web site for store

locations, PETsMART.com® is a

proven traffic driver.

Through direct marketing, we’re

working to gather more and better

information about our customers,

how they shop, and their changing

needs throughout the various

stages of a pet’s life. We’ll use this

information to make decisions about

our business and what we offer.

And ultimately, we’ll communicate

directly with the customer, providing

information and solutions specifically

tailored to their pet’s needs. 

Building a better world for pets

Through PETsMART Charities®

Adoption Centers located in every

store, 270,000 once-homeless pets

found families in 2002 and we’ve

saved a total of 1.4 million lives to

date. Our associates, our customers

and our company donated more

than $5 million to the cause in

2002, totaling $24 million donated

to PETsMART Charities® for 

distribution to animal welfare groups

over the last nine years. From the

celebration of each adoption, to

the nearly $1 million donated 

by PETsMART associates through

payroll deductions, PETsMART

Charities® is moving closer to its

vision of a life-long loving home

for every pet.

”We’re working to gather more and better information 
about our customers, how they shop, and their changing
needs. We’ll use this information to make decisions about
our business and what we offer.” 
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“We’re at the beginning of our work to make PETsMART a great company.”

PETsMART is in an industry 

with great fundamentals, great 

demographic trends and one of 

the fastest growth rates in retail.

Pet parenting is on the rise and

the existing $29 billion market is

projected to grow at 6 percent 

a year for the next five years. 

And, since about 80 percent of

the pet business today is still done 

outside the pet specialty sector, we

feel good about where PETsMART

is headed. 

We’re at the beginning of our

work to make PETsMART a great

company. With a sound strategy

in place for the business, we’re

focused and working every day

toward success. From the corporate

office to the stores, our associates

understand our priorities and 

consistently execute against them.

We have the fundamental strengths

to tackle the challenges, make 

the most of the opportunities and

continue to create real value for

our shareholders. 

Building the
future.

8
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PART I

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These
statements relate to future events or our future Ñnancial performance. We have attempted to identify forward-
looking statements by terminology including ""anticipate,'' ""believe,'' ""can,'' ""continue,'' ""could,'' ""estimate,''
""expect,'' ""intend,'' ""may,'' ""plan,'' ""potential,'' ""predict,'' ""should,'' or ""will'' or the negative of these terms
or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties, and other factors, including the risks outlined under ""Business Risks'' contained in Part I
of this Annual Report that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements to be
materially diÅerent from any future results, levels or activity, performance, or achievements expressed or
implied by these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations reÖected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Our expectations are as of the
date this Form 10-K is Ñled, and we do not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements after the
date this Annual Report on Form 10-K is Ñled to conform these statements to actual results, unless required by
law.

Our Ñscal year consists of the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday nearest January 31 of the following
year. Unless otherwise speciÑed, all references in this Form 10-K to years are to Ñscal years. The 2000 and
2002 Ñscal years were 52-week years, and the 2001 Ñscal year was a 53-week year.

Item 1. Business

General

PETsMART was incorporated in Delaware on August 11, 1986, and opened its Ñrst two stores in March
1987. We ended 1993 with 107 stores in 19 states, and by 1997, we had grown to 384 stores, including 12 in
Canada. As of February 2, 2003, we operated 583 retail stores in North America, typically ranging in size from
19,000 to 26,000 square feet, and generated sales of $2.7 billion, making PETsMART the leading provider of
products, services, and solutions for the lifetime needs of pets in North America. Our stores carry a broad and
deep selection of high quality pet supplies at everyday low prices. We oÅer over 12,000 distinct items,
including nationally recognized brand names, as well as an extensive selection of private brands across a range
of product categories.

We complement our extensive product assortment with a wide selection of value-added pet services,
including grooming and pet training. Virtually all our stores oÅer complete pet training services and feature pet
styling salons that provide high quality grooming services. In addition, through our strategic relationship with
BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM, we oÅer full service veterinary care in approximately 300 of our stores.

We have identiÑed a large group of pet owners we call ""pet parents.'' Pet parents are passionately
committed to their pets and consider their pets family members. We focus on providing these customers with
a one-stop shopping destination that oÅers Total Lifetime CareTM for pets in an easy-to-shop, full service
specialty environment. We also reach customers through our direct marketing channels, PETsMART.com,
the Internet's most frequented pet e-commerce site, as well as a web site dedicated to equine products, and
two major branded catalogs.

Our strategy emphasizes driving for eÇciencies in our stores, our processes and our systems, growing our
highly proÑtable pet services businesses, and taking care of the customer by providing a superior store, a
superior shopping experience, and superior service. In 1999, we began several strategic initiatives to strengthen
our market position and enhance our customer's shopping experience. These initiatives include improving
distribution capabilities, implementing new management information systems, growing pet services, increasing
our focus on customer service, and reformatting our stores. Our new store design creates a specialty store
environment by organizing store layout by pet species, placing a greater emphasis on pet services and
eliminating most of the high steel shelving, resulting in a brighter and more open store. The new format,
combined with our enhanced distribution and information systems capabilities, reduces inventories, makes the
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store easier to shop and allows our associates to spend more time serving customers. As of February 2, 2003,
we had approximately 400 stores, or 69% of our total store base, in the new format. We plan to complete the
stores targeted for the reformatting program by the end of 2003. We believe these strategic initiatives will
continue to drive enhanced comparable store sales growth, proÑtability, and return on investment.

The Pet Food and Pet Supply Industry

The pet product industry serves a large and growing market. In 2001, the Business Communications
Company, Inc., which conducts surveys every two years, estimated the market for pet and equine products and
supplies, including services, to be approximately $29 billion. Pets, including Ñsh, have become increasingly
prevalent in United States households. There are approximately 68 million dogs and 73 million cats in United
States households based on the 2001 American Pet Product Manufacturers Association, or APPMA, National
Pet Owners Survey. Demand for pets is largely inÖuenced by family formation as more than 35% of all pets are
owned by families with children. Sixty-two percent of United States households own a pet and 47% of those
households own more than one type of pet, according to APPMA.

Dog food, cat food, and treats represent the largest volume categories of pet-related products. Based on
information from Data & Research Services, plc., a company that specializes in automatic data capture
systems, we estimate that sales of dog food, cat food, and treats in the United States were approximately
$11.0 billion in 2001, up 6.2% from 2000. Based on information from Data & Research Services, plc., we
estimate that supermarket pet food brands, such as Purina, Pedigree, Alpo, and Friskies accounted for
approximately 63% of United States pet food sales in 2001. In recent years, supermarkets' share of total pet
food sales has decreased as a result of increased competition from superstores, club stores, mass merchandis-
ers, Internet retailers, and specialty pet stores as well as the growing proportion of sales of premium foods.
Based on information from Data & Research Services, plc., we estimate that premium pet food brands such as
Nutro, Science Diet, ProPlan, and Eukanuba, which oÅer higher levels of nutrition than non-premium brands,
accounted for approximately 37% of United States pet food sales in 2001. Many of these premium pet foods
are not currently sold through supermarkets, warehouse clubs, and mass merchandisers due to manufacturers'
restrictions, but are sold primarily through superstores, specialty pet stores, veterinarians, and farm and feed
stores.

United States sales of pet supplies, consisting of items such as dog and cat toys, collars and leashes, cages
and habitats, books, vitamins and supplements, shampoos, Öea and tick control, and aquatic supplies, were
approximately $5.1 billion in 2000, up 33% over 1996, according to Packaged Facts, a consumer market
research company. Packaged Facts projects sales growth in supplies at 6% annually, exceeding $6.8 billion by
2005.

Merchandise

Merchandise, which represented approximately 94%, 95%, and 96% of our retail revenues in 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively, generally falls into three main categories:

‚ Pet Food, Treats and Litter. We emphasize premium dog and cat foods, many of which are not
available in supermarkets, warehouse clubs or mass merchandisers. We also oÅer quality national
brands traditionally found in supermarkets and pet stores. The sale of pet food, treats, and litter
comprised approximately 42%, 45%, and 44% of our retail revenues in 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.

‚ Pet Supplies and Other Goods. Our broad assortment of pet supplies includes collars, leashes, health
and beauty aids, shampoos, medication, toys, pet carriers, dog houses, cat furniture, and equestrian
supplies. We also oÅer a complete line of supplies for Ñsh, birds, and small pets, including aquariums,
Ñlters, birdcages, and small pet supplies. We have an equine department in certain stores that serves
trade areas with high rates of horse ownership. The sale of pet supplies and other non-pet supply goods
comprised approximately 49%, 46%, and 49% of our retail revenues in 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.
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‚ Live Pets. Our stores feature fresh-water tropical Ñsh and domestically bred birds, reptiles, and small
pets. Live pets comprised approximately 3%, 4%, and 3% of our retail revenues in 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively.

Pet Services

Pet services, which include pet grooming, pet training, and PETsMART PETsHOTELTM, a complete pet
boarding and daycare service, represented approximately 6%, 5%, and 4% of our retail revenues in 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively. Unlike our principal competitors, we oÅer a wide range of services for the pet owner.
We oÅer full-service grooming and pet training services at almost all of our stores. We typically allocate an
average of 700 square feet per store for high-quality, full-service grooming. Our pet stylists are trained through
a 15-week program that teaches exceptional grooming skills using safe and gentle handling techniques. A
broad range of personalized services are available in our pet salons, from toenail trimming to toothbrushing to
a precision cut, shampoo, and style. Pet training services range from puppy classes to advanced and private
courses. Total revenues from pet grooming, pet training, and boarding services grew approximately 29% from
$119.2 million in 2001 to $154.3 million in 2002.

We are testing the PETsHOTEL concept in two of our larger stores, and we have a stand-alone location
as well. These PETsHOTELs oÅer boarding and daycare for dogs and cats, 24-hour supervision, an on-site
veterinarian, air-conditioned rooms and suites, and daily specialty treats and play time. The preliminary test
results are meeting our expectations. In addition, we plan to open seven additional test PETsHOTELs in key
markets in 2003 and will continue to evaluate the results.

Veterinary Services

The availability of comprehensive veterinary care further diÅerentiates us and reÖects our overall
commitment to pet care. Full-service veterinary hospitals in our stores generally oÅer routine examinations
and vaccinations, dental care, a pharmacy, and both routine and complex surgical procedures. Our prototype
2,000 square foot in-store hospital provides operating and examining rooms as well as on-site X-ray machines
and blood diagnostic equipment. Through proprietary computerized diagnosis software, we believe these
hospitals oÅer customers more sophisticated services than traditional veterinary competitors typically provide.
Many of our stores without in-store hospitals oÅer routine vaccinations and wellness services.

As of February 2, 2003, veterinary hospitals operated in approximately 300 of our stores. Substantially all
of these hospitals are operated by Medical Management International, Inc., or MMI, a third-party operator of
veterinary hospitals, operating under the trade name of BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM. As of February 2, 2003,
we owned approximately 15% of the voting stock and 31% of the combined voting and non-voting stock of
MMI Holdings, Inc., the parent of MMI. We charge MMI licensing fees for the space used by the veterinary
hospitals, and we treat this income as a reduction of the retail stores' occupancy costs, which is recorded as a
component of cost of sales in our consolidated Ñnancial statements.

Adoption

Through PETsMART Charities, Inc., an independent 501(c)(3) organization, we support the activities
of local humane organizations. As of February 2, 2003, through PETsMART Charities' Adoption Centers,
approximately 1.4 million pets have been adopted in our stores since 1994.

Our Strategy

Our strategy is to be the preferred provider for the lifetime needs of pets. Our primary initiatives include:

Reformatting the remainder of our stores by the end of 2003. As of February 2, 2003, we had
converted approximately 69% of our store base to our new specialty store format. We believe our
reformatted stores contribute to higher comparable store sales growth, proÑtability and return on
investment. As a result, we have accelerated our store reformat program and anticipate the program will
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be complete by the end of 2003. The reformat process for a store typically can be completed within
10 days during non-operating hours, causing minimal disruption to customers and store operations.

Adding stores in existing multi-store and new single-store markets. Our expansion strategy includes
increasing our share in the top 60 multi-store existing markets, penetrating new single-store markets, and
achieving operating eÇciencies and economies of scale in distribution, procurement, marketing, and store
operations. During 2002, we opened 23 new stores, net of closures, and we expect to open approximately
60 new stores, net of store closures, in 2003, primarily in multi-store markets. We believe there is a
potential for an aggregate of approximately 1,200 PETsMART stores in North America.

Expanding our pet services business. Based on sales, we are the leading provider of professional
grooming and pet training. Pet services are an integral part of our strategy, and we are focused on driving
proÑtable growth in our services business. Since 1999, pet services has grown from $76.0 million to
$154.3 million in 2002, or 103%. We believe services diÅerentiate us from competitors, drive traÇc and
repeat visits to our stores, allow us to forge strong relationships with our customers, provide cross-selling
opportunities, increase transaction size, and enhance margins. PETsHOTEL, which is a complete pet
boarding and daycare service, is a new concept that is being tested through the PETsHOTELs located in
two of our larger stores, as well as at a stand-alone location. Pet services revenue, which includes pet
grooming, pet training, and PETsHOTEL, grew by 29% in both 2002 and 2001. We are conÑdent in our
ability to continue to expand the pet services portion of our business. In addition, through our strategic
relationship with BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM, we are focused on increasing the number of stores that
oÅer full service veterinary care.

OÅering outstanding customer service. Our emphasis on the customer is a cultural shift designed to
provide our customers with an unparalleled shopping experience every time they visit our stores. Using a
detailed curriculum and role playing techniques, we educate store associates to identify customer needs
and provide solutions. We measure their success using customer service metrics in every store, and a
portion of the annual incentive program for managers, from the store level to the executive team, is linked
to these metrics. By providing pet parents with expertise and solutions, we believe we are strengthening
our relationships, building customer loyalty, and enhancing our leading market position.

DiÅerentiating ourselves through eÅective brand management. As our competitive position
strengthens, we are beginning to focus on developing and strengthening our brand identity. We are
creating tools to eÅectively communicate our unique value proposition and vision of providing Total
Lifetime CareTM for pets, and to build enduring relationships with our customers. We recently installed a
centralized customer database that allows us to track and analyze customer shopping patterns. We intend
to use this information to customize direct marketing and promotional materials, and to more eÅectively
communicate with customers across all our channels.

Our Stores

Our stores are generally located in sites co-anchored by strong destination superstores and typically are in
or near major regional shopping centers. In 2002, we opened a total of 27 stores and closed four stores. In
addition, we expect to open approximately 60 new stores, net of store closures, in 2003. We believe there is a
potential for a total of approximately 1,200 PETsMART stores in North America.

Distribution

We currently employ a hybrid distribution system including, as appropriate, full truckload shipments to
individual stores and the splitting of full truckloads among several closely located stores and distribution
centers. Our forward distribution centers handle consumables that require rapid replenishment, improving
inventory productivity in an eÇcient, cost-eÅective manner. Our distribution network enhancements, com-
bined with the improvement and integration of our information systems, allow for reduced store inventory and
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transportation costs, more eÇcient use of store labor, improved in-stock positions, and better distribution
center productivity. We operate the following distribution centers:

Square
Location Footage Date Opened Distribution Type

Brockport, New YorkÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 392,000 February 1990 Catalog, Internet, store and
equine distribution center

Ennis, Texas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 230,000 November 1999 Forward distribution center

Columbus, Ohio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 613,000 September 2000 Distribution center

Gahanna, Ohio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 276,000 October 2000 Forward distribution center

Hagerstown, MarylandÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 252,000 October 2000 Forward distribution center

Newnan, Georgia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 200,000 April 2001 Forward distribution center

Phoenix, Arizona(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 625,000 September 2001 Distribution center and forward
distribution center

Reno, Nevada ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150,000 June 2002 Forward distribution center

(1) Originally opened in 1996 as a distribution center and comprised of 447,000 square feet. An expansion of
this location of 178,000 square feet in September 2001 created the addition of a forward distribution
center.

Information Systems

During the Ñrst half of 2002, we integrated the information systems associated with our direct marketing
business in Brockport, NY, and PETsMART.com, Inc.'s information systems located in Pasadena, California,
with the information systems located at our corporate oÇce in Phoenix, Arizona. This has allowed us to
consolidate our information systems and personnel in Phoenix, Arizona, and to eliminate redundant expenses.

In 2002, we completed the second year of a three-year project to upgrade and expand telecommunica-
tions and wireless backbones in our stores. These upgrades make our stores easier to operate, increase
associate eÇciency, and enhance company communications. As of February 2, 2003, approximately 70% of
our stores have received these upgrades.

Also in 2002, we began a two-year project to implement a software application to automate scheduling,
check-in, check-out, and labor management, as well as to maintain a database of customer and pet proÑles for
grooming and PETsHOTEL boarding services. As of February 2, 2003, this software had been installed in
approximately half of our grooming salons.

Software applications have been selected for demand planning, forecasting, replenishment, seasonality,
traÇc management, vendor collaboration, customer relationship management, direct marketing, and human
resources. Implementations of these applications are expected to be completed during 2003 and 2004.

Competition

Based on total sales, we are the largest specialty retailer of pet food, supplies, and services in North
America. The pet food and pet supply retail business is highly competitive and can be categorized into Ñve
diÅerent segments:

‚ supermarkets, warehouse clubs and other mass merchandisers;

‚ specialty pet supply chains and pet supply stores;

‚ independent pet stores;

‚ catalog retailers; and

‚ Internet retailers.
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We believe that the principal competitive factors inÖuencing our business are product selection and
quality, convenience of store locations, customer service, price, and availability of pet services. Many of the
products we oÅer are not currently available in grocery stores, warehouse clubs or other mass merchandisers
due to manufacturers' restrictions. We believe that we compete eÅectively within our various markets;
however, some of our competitors are larger in terms of overall sales volume and have access to greater capital
and management resources than we do.

We are currently the only major specialty pet retailer that markets to customers through stores, catalogs,
and the Internet, and we believe this gives us a competitive advantage. In addition, we believe our pet services
business, which grocery stores and mass merchandisers are not likely to duplicate, is a competitive advantage.

Government Regulation

We are subject to laws governing our relationship with employees, including minimum wage require-
ments, overtime, working conditions, and citizenship requirements. There are statutes and regulations in
certain states and Canadian provinces that aÅect the ownership of veterinary practices, or the operation of
veterinary hospitals in retail stores, that may impact our or MMI's ability, to operate veterinary hospitals in
certain facilities.

The transportation, handling, and sale of small pets is governed by various state and local regulations.
These laws vary from state to state and are enforced by the courts and by regulatory authorities with broad
discretion. While we seek to structure our operations to comply with the laws and regulations of each state in
which we operate, there can be no assurance that, given varying and uncertain interpretations of these laws, we
would be found to be in compliance in all states.

Our facilities and operations are also subject to environmental regulations imposed by federal, state,
provincial and local authorities with respect to generation, handling, storage, transportation, and disposal of
waste and biohazardous materials, and the sale and distribution of products. We may in the future incur
liability under environmental statutes and regulations with respect to contamination detected at some sites
owned or operated by us, including contamination caused by prior owners or operators of these sites or other
persons. We also could be subject to costs, including Ñnes or sanctions, and third party claims as a result of
violations of, or liabilities under environmental, health, or safety laws.

Insurance

We maintain standard property and casualty insurance on all of our stores, product liability insurance
covering products and the sale of live pets, and worker compensation insurance. Property insurance covers
approximately $1.2 billion in buildings and contents, including furniture and Ñxtures, leasehold improvements
and inventory. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance policies, we retain the initial risk of
loss of $250,000 for each policy per occurrence.

Intellectual Property

We have several service marks and trademarks registered with the United States Patent and Trademark
OÇce, or USPTO, including ""PETsMART»,'' ""PETsMART.com»,'' ""Where Pets Are Family»,'' and ""All
You Need for the Life of Your Pet»,'' as well as many others. We also have several applications pending with
the USPTO for trademarks, including ""PETsMART PETsHOTELTM,'' and anticipate Ñling additional
applications in the future. We also have several registered service marks and trademarks and have applications
pending in other countries, including Canada. We also own several trade names, domain names and copyrights
for use in our business. We regard our intellectual property as having signiÑcant value and as important
components in our merchandising and marketing strategies.

Employees

As of February 2, 2003, we employed approximately 23,500 associates, approximately 12,000 of whom
were employed full time. We are not subject to any collective bargaining agreements and have not experienced
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any work stoppages. We consider our relationship with our associates to be good. Increases in the federal
minimum wage in recent years have not had a material eÅect on our business.

Financial Information by Business Segment and Geographic Data

As of February 3, 2002, we had three operating segments: PETsMART North America, which included
all retail stores, PETsMART Direct, which included our equine catalog and equine Internet operations; and
PETsMART.com, which included our pet catalog and pet Internet operations. As a result of the reorganiza-
tion of the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com operations and the results of operations of these
operating segments during 2002, we have evaluated our segment reporting requirements under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 131, ""Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,'' and determined that the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com operating
segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for disclosure as reportable operating segments. No one
region or country other than the United States accounted for 10% or more of revenues in 2002.

Net sales in the United States were approximately $2,632.5 million, $2,438.2 million, and $2,161.6 mil-
lion for 2002, 2001, and 2000. Net sales in Canada were approximately $62.7 million, $62.8 million, and
$62.6 million for 2002, 2001, and 2000. The information for long-lived assets and deferred tax assets is
incorporated by reference to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements attached as Exhibit F.

Available Information

We make available free of charge or through our Internet website (www.petsmart.com) our annual report
on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically Ñle such material, or furnish it to the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Business Risks

In the normal course of business, our Ñnancial position is routinely subjected to a variety of risks,
including market risks associated with store expansion, investments in information systems, international
expansion, vendor reliability, competitive forces, and government regulatory actions. You should carefully
consider the risks and uncertainties described below in connection with those also discussed in Our Stores,
Distribution, Information Systems, Competition, and Government Regulation sections of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Our actual results could diÅer materially from projected results due to some or all of the
factors discussed below.

If we are unable to successfully implement our strategy of reformatting existing stores and opening new
stores our results of operations would be harmed.

Our continued growth depends to a degree on our ability to increase sales at our reformatted stores. We
currently expect to complete the stores targeted for the reformatting program by the end of 2003. There can be
no assurance that our reformatted stores will meet forecasted levels of sales and proÑtability. If we are unable
to operate our reformatted stores proÑtably our results of operations would be harmed.

In addition, we expect to open approximately 60 stores, net of store closures, in 2003. Our ability to open
additional stores is dependent on various factors including:

‚ identifying store sites that oÅer attractive returns on our investment;

‚ competition for those sites;

‚ successfully negotiating with landlords;

‚ timely construction of such stores; and

‚ our ability to attract and retain qualiÑed store personnel.
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To the extent we are unable to accomplish any of the above, our ability to open new stores may be
harmed. In addition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to operate our new stores proÑtably.

New stores may erode sales at existing stores and comparable store sales growth may decrease as stores
grow older.

We currently operate stores in most of the major market areas of the United States and Canada. Our
plans for 2003 include opening 60 stores, net of store closures, primarily in existing multi-store markets. It has
been our experience that opening new stores may attract some customers away from other stores already
operated by us in those markets and diminish their sales. Our comparable store sales increases were 9.6% and
6.5% for the Ñscal years ended February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, respectively. As a result of new store
openings in existing markets, and because older stores will represent an increasing proportion of our store base
over time, our comparable store sales increases may be lower or sales could decrease in future periods.

Our operating margins at new stores may be lower than those of existing stores.

We expect operating margins to be aÅected by new store openings because of the addition of preopening
expenses and the lower sales volumes characteristic of newly opened stores. In certain geographic regions, we
have experienced lower comparable store sales increases and levels of store contribution compared to results
achieved in other regions. In addition, we expect certain operating costs, particularly those related to
occupancy, to be higher than in the past in some newly entered geographic regions. As a result of a possible
slower overall rate of comparable store sales increases or decreases in comparable store sales and the impact of
these rising costs, our total store contribution and operating margins may be lower in future periods than they
have been in the past.

A disruption or malfunction in the operation of our distribution centers would impact our ability to deliver
merchandise to our stores, which could harm our sales and results of operations.

Our merchandise is generally shipped by our suppliers to one of our distribution centers, which receive
and allocate merchandise to our stores. We have opened six forward distribution centers since 1999, including
one in June 2002. Any interruption or malfunction in our distribution operations could harm our sales and
results of operations. We have two Ñsh distribution centers that are operated by a third-party vendor, and an
interruption or malfunction to their business could harm our sales and results of operations. In such an event,
there can be no assurance that we could contract with another third party to operate the Ñsh distribution
centers on favorable terms, if at all, or that we could successfully operate the Ñsh distribution centers
ourselves.

If our information systems fail to perform as designed our business could be harmed.

The eÇcient operation of our business is dependent on our information systems. In particular, we rely on
our information systems to eÅectively manage our sales, warehousing, distribution, merchandise planning and
replenishment functions, and to maintain our in-stock positions. Our information systems are centrally located
at our headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, and we possess oÅsite redundancy capabilities. The failure of our
information systems to perform as designed could disrupt our business and harm our sales and proÑtability.

We continue to invest in our information systems. There can be no assurance that the costs of
investments in our information systems will not exceed estimates or that they will be as beneÑcial as predicted.
If we are unable to realize the beneÑts of improved systems, our results of operations could be harmed.

A decline in consumers' discretionary spending could reduce our sales and harm our business.

Our sales depend on consumer spending, which is inÖuenced by many factors beyond our control
including general economic conditions, the availability of discretionary income, weather, consumer conÑdence,
and unemployment levels. We may experience declines in sales, particularly sales of pet supplies, during
economic downturns. Any material decline in the amount of discretionary spending could reduce our sales and
harm our business.
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Our results may Öuctuate as a result of seasonal changes associated with the pet food and pet supply
retailing industry and the timing of controllable expenses and new store openings.

Our business is subject to seasonal Öuctuation. We typically realize a higher portion of our net sales and
operating proÑt during the fourth Ñscal quarter. As a result of this seasonality, we believe that quarter-to-
quarter comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and that these comparisons cannot
be relied upon as indicators of future performance. In addition, controllable expenses, such as advertising,
could Öuctuate from quarter-to-quarter in a Ñscal year. Also, sales of certain products and services designed to
address pet health needs are seasonal. Because our stores typically draw customers from a large trade area,
sales also may be impacted by adverse weather or travel conditions, which are more prevalent during certain
seasons of the year. Finally, as a result of our expansion plans, the timing of new store openings, related
preopening expenses, and the amount of revenue contributed by new and existing stores may cause our
quarterly results of operations to Öuctuate.

The pet food and pet supply retailing industry is highly competitive, and continued competitive forces may
reduce our sales and proÑtability.

The pet food and pet supply retailing industry is highly competitive. We compete with supermarkets,
warehouse clubs and mass merchandisers, many of which are larger and have signiÑcantly greater resources
than we have. We also compete with a number of pet supply warehouse or specialty stores, smaller pet store
chains, catalog retailers, Internet retailers and independent pet stores. The industry has become increasingly
competitive due to the entrance of other specialty retailers into the pet food and pet supply market, some of
which have developed store formats similar to ours, and due to the expansion of pet related-product oÅerings
by certain warehouse clubs and mass merchandisers. There can be no assurance we will not face greater
competition from these or other retailers in the future. In particular, if any of our major competitors seek to
gain or retain market share by reducing prices, we would likely reduce our prices in order to remain
competitive, which may result in a decrease in our sales and proÑtability and require a change in our operating
strategies.

The loss of any of our key vendors, a decision by our vendors to make their products available in
supermarkets or through mass merchandisers, or the inability of our vendors to provide products in a timely
or cost-eÅective manner could harm our business.

We have no long-term supply commitments from our vendors. We buy from several hundred vendors
worldwide and together our two largest vendors accounted for approximately 14% of our total sales for the
Ñscal 2002. Sales of premium pet food for dogs and cats comprise a signiÑcant portion of our revenues.
Currently, most of the major vendors of premium pet foods do not permit their products to be sold in
supermarkets, warehouse clubs, or through other mass merchandisers. If any of the premium pet food or pet
supply vendors were to make their products available in supermarkets or through mass merchandisers, our
business could be harmed. In addition, if the grocery brands currently available to such retailers were to gain
market share at the expense of the premium brands sold only through specialty pet food and pet supply outlets,
our business could be harmed.

We purchase signiÑcant amounts of pet supplies from a number of vendors with limited supply
capabilities. There can be no assurance that our current pet supply vendors will be able to accommodate our
anticipated needs. In addition, we purchase signiÑcant amounts of pet supplies from vendors outside of the
United States. There can be no assurance our overseas vendors will be able to satisfy our requirements,
including timeliness of delivery, acceptable product quality, packaging and labeling requirements, and our
other requirements. Any inability of our existing vendors to provide products in a timely or cost-eÅective
manner could harm our business. While we believe our vendor relationships are satisfactory, any vendor could
discontinue selling to us at any time.
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We depend on key personnel and may not be able to retain or replace these employees or recruit additional
qualiÑed personnel, which could harm our business.

Our success is largely dependent on the eÅorts and abilities of our senior executive group. The loss of the
services of one or more of our key executives could adversely impact our Ñnancial performance and our ability
to execute our strategies. In addition, our future success will depend on our ability to attract highly skilled
store managers and qualiÑed services personnel such as pet trainers and groomers. There is a high level of
competition for these employees and our ability to operate our stores and expand these services depends on our
ability to attract and retain these personnel. In addition, historically there has been a shortage of qualiÑed
veterinarians. If BanÑeld cannot attract and retain a suÇcient number of veterinarians, our ability to provide
veterinary services in our stores, and increase the number of stores in which we oÅer veterinary services, may
be impacted.

Our international operations may result in additional market risks, which may harm our business.

We entered the Canadian market in 1996, and operated 19 stores in Canada as of February 2, 2003. As
these operations grow, they may require greater management and Ñnancial resources. International operations
require the integration of personnel with varying cultural and business backgrounds and an understanding of
the relevant diÅerences in the legal and regulatory environments. In addition, we purchase signiÑcant amounts
of pet supplies from vendors outside the United States. Our results may be increasingly aÅected by the risks of
our international activities, including:

‚ Öuctuations in currency exchange rates;

‚ changes in international staÇng and employment issues;

‚ tariÅ and other trade barriers;

‚ the burden of complying with foreign laws, including tax laws; and

‚ political and economic instability and developments.

Our business may be harmed if the operation of veterinary hospitals at our stores is limited or fails to continue.

We and MMI, the third party operator of BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM, are subject to laws governing the
operation of veterinary hospitals. MMI Holdings, Inc., or MMIH, is the parent company of MMI. Statutes
and regulations in various states and Canadian provinces regulating the ownership of veterinary practices, or
the operation of veterinary hospitals in retail stores, may impact our and MMI's ability to operate veterinary
hospitals within our facilities. A determination that we or MMI are in violation of any of these applicable
statutes and regulations could require us or MMI to restructure our operations to comply or render us or MMI
unable to operate veterinary hospitals in a given location. We recorded $8.3 million and $6.7 million from
MMI during Ñscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, as a reduction to occupancy costs. If MMIH or MMI were to
experience Ñnancial or other operating diÇculties that would force it to limit its operations, or if MMIH were
to cease operating the veterinary hospitals in our stores, our business may be harmed, both directly and
because of a decrease in customer traÇc. Historically there has been a shortage of qualiÑed veterinarians. If
BanÑeld cannot attract and retain a suÇcient number of veterinarians, our ability to provide veterinary services
in our stores and increase the number of stores in which we oÅer veterinary services may be harmed. In such
event there can be no assurance that we could contract with another third party to operate the veterinary
hospitals on favorable terms, if at all, or that we could successfully operate the veterinary hospitals ourselves.
For a further discussion of our relationship with MMI please see ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations Ì Related Party Transactions.''

If we need to raise additional capital our business would be harmed if we were unable to do so on
acceptable terms.

We currently anticipate that our existing capital resources and cash Öows from operations will enable us
to maintain our currently planned operations for the foreseeable future. If, however, we are unable to generate
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and maintain positive operating cash Öows and operating income in the future, we may need additional
funding. We may also choose to raise additional capital due to market conditions or strategic considerations
even if we believe that we have suÇcient funds for our current or future operating plans. Our current credit
facility is secured by substantially all of our personal property assets, our subsidiaries and certain real property.
This could limit our ability to obtain, or obtain on favorable terms, additional Ñnancing and may make more
costly additional debt Ñnancing outside our credit facility. If additional capital were needed, our inability to
raise capital on favorable terms would harm our business and Ñnancial condition. In addition, to the extent
that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or debt securities convertible into equity, the
issuance of these securities could result in dilution to our stockholders.

A determination that we are in violation of any government regulations could require us to restructure our
operations to comply in a given government jurisdiction and could harm our business.

The transportation, handling, and sale of small pets are governed by various state and local regulations.
These laws vary from state to state and are enforced by the courts and by regulatory authorities with broad
discretion. In addition, the operation of veterinary hospitals are subject to federal, state and local statutes and
regulations such as the use, management, transport and disposal of medical materials and biohazardous
materials. While we seek to structure our operations to comply with the laws and regulations of each
jurisdiction in which we operate, there can be no assurance that, given varying and uncertain interpretations of
these laws we would be found to be in compliance in all jurisdictions. A determination that we are in violation
of applicable laws could require us to restructure our operations to comply with such requirements and/or
incur Ñnes or sanctions, which could harm our business.

Our business exposes us to claims which could result in adverse publicity, harm to our brand and reduce
our sales.

We are occasionally subject to claims due to the injury or death of a pet in our stores or while under our
care in connection with the pet services we provide. In addition, we sell certain small pets, including Ñsh, birds,
reptiles and small rodents in our stores. Given the large number of small pets we sell, deaths or injuries of
these small pets sometimes occur while they are within our control. As a result, we may be subject to claims
that we do not properly care for these small pets. We may also be subject to claims resulting from the transfer
of diseases from pets in our stores to associates and patrons of our stores. In addition, from time to time we
have been subject to product liability claims for some of the products we sell. Any negative publicity or claims
relating to any of the foregoing could harm our reputation and business, as well as expose us to litigation
expenses and damages.

Pending legislation, weather, disease or other factors could disrupt the supply of small pets we sell, which
could harm our reputation and decrease sales.

There is currently a signiÑcant amount of legislation pending at the federal, state and local levels
regarding the handling of pets. This legislation may impair our ability to transport the small pets we sell in our
stores. In addition, our supply of small pets may be negatively impacted by weather. For example, a signiÑcant
number of the vendors who supply us with small pets are concentrated in Florida. If a signiÑcant hurricane
were to strike Florida, it is possible that many our vendors would not be able to supply us with small pets in the
quantities we require, or at all. Finally, the small pets we sell in our stores are susceptible to diseases that can
quickly decrease or destroy the supply of these pets. Any disruption in the supply of small pets to our stores,
due to legislation, weather, disease or any other factor, could harm our reputation and decrease our sales.
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Fluctuations in the stock market as well as general economic and market conditions may harm the market
price of our common stock.

Over the last several years, the market price of our common stock has been subject to signiÑcant
Öuctuation. The market price of our common stock may continue to be subject to signiÑcant Öuctuations in
response to operating results and other factors, including:

‚ announcements by analysts regarding their assessment of PETsMART and its prospects;

‚ announcements of our Ñnancial results, particularly if they diÅer from investors' expectations;

‚ general economic changes;

‚ actions taken by our competitors, including new product introductions and pricing changes;

‚ changes in the strategy and capability of our competitors;

‚ our ability to successfully integrate acquisitions and consolidations;

‚ the prospects of our industry; and

‚ hostilities and acts of terrorism.

In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced price and volume Öuctuations that often
have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies. These Öuctuations, as
well as general economic and market conditions, may harm the market price of our common stock.

We have implemented some anti-takeover provisions, including a stockholder rights plan that may prevent
or delay an acquisition of us that might be beneÑcial to our stockholders.

Our restated certiÑcate of incorporation and bylaws include provisions that may delay, defer or prevent a
change in management or control that our stockholders might not believe is in their best interests. These
provisions include:

‚ a classiÑed board of directors consisting of three classes;

‚ the ability of our board of directors to issue without stockholder approval up to 10,000,000 shares of
preferred stock in one or more series with rights, obligations, and preferences determined by the board
of directors;

‚ no right of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

‚ no right of stockholders to act by written consent;

‚ certain advance notice procedures for nominating candidates for election to the board of directors; and

‚ no right to cumulative voting.

In addition, our restated certiÑcate of incorporation requires a 662/3% vote of stockholders to:

‚ alter or amend our bylaws;

‚ remove a director without cause; or

‚ alter, amend or repeal certain provisions of our restated certiÑcate of incorporation.

In August 1997, our board of directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan, commonly referred to as a
poison pill, under which one preferred share purchase right was distributed on August 29, 1997 for each share
of common stock held on that date. We are also subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law and the application of Section 203 could have the eÅect of delaying or
preventing an acquisition of PETsMART.
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Management

Our executive oÇcers and their ages and positions on April 8, 2003, are as follows:

Name Age Position

Philip L. Francis ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 56 Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer

Robert F. Moran ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52 President and Chief Operating OÇcer

Carol M. Cox ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 60 Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Scott A. Crozier ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

Barbara A. Fitzgerald ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 51 Senior Vice President, Store Operations

Kenneth T. Hall ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 35 Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing OÇcer

David L. King ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50 Senior Vice President, Chief Information OÇcer

Timothy E. KullmanÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 47 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer

David K. Lenhardt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33 Senior Vice President, Services, Strategic
Planning and Business Development

Mark D. Mumford ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41 Vice President, Controller, and Chief
Accounting OÇcer

David A. QuinnÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45 Senior Vice President, Distribution

Anthony N. Truesdale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40 Senior Vice President, Merchandising

Philip L. Francis has been a director of PETsMART since 1989, and Chief Executive OÇcer since
March 1998. In September 1999, he was also named Chairman of the Board, and from 1998 to 2001, he was
our President. From 1991 to 1998, he held various positions with Shaw's Supermarkets, Inc., a subsidiary of
J. Sainsbury plc., including Chief Executive OÇcer, Chief Operating OÇcer, and President. Prior to that he
held several senior management positions for Roundy's, Inc., Cardinal Health, and the Jewel Companies.

Robert F. Moran was appointed President and Chief Operating OÇcer in December 2001. He joined
PETsMART as President of North American Stores in July 1999. From 1998 to 1999, he was President of
Toys "R' Us, Ltd., Canada. Prior to 1991 and from 1993 to 1998, for a total of 20 years he was with Sears,
Roebuck and Company in a variety of Ñnancial and merchandising positions, including President and Chief
Executive OÇcer of Sears de Mexico. He was also Chief Financial OÇcer and Executive Vice President of
Galerias Preciados of Madrid, Spain from 1991 through 1993.

Carol M. Cox joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President of Human Resources in October 1998. From
1997 to 1998, Ms. Cox served as Director of Human Resources for Rural/Metro Corporation. From 1995 to
1997, she was Vice President of Human Resources for Frank's Nursery and Crafts, a national specialty crafts
and nursery retailer. Prior to that, she was a Senior Vice President at Dylex, Ltd., a major Canadian specialty
store retailer, and served as Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Communications at Frederick
Atkins, Inc., a marketing research corporation.

Scott A. Crozier joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President and General Counsel in June 1999, and
was appointed Secretary in June 2000. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Crozier was Chairman and Chief Executive
OÇcer of Westpac Consulting, L.L.C., a real estate services company. From 1987 to 1998, Mr. Crozier served
as Vice President and General Counsel for Phelps Dodge Corporation, a global mining and manufacturing
company. Prior to that, he was Counsel for Talley Industries, Inc., and served as an enforcement attorney with
the Securities Division of the Arizona Corporation Commission and during that time was also appointed a
Special Assistant Attorney General with the Arizona Attorney General's OÇce.

Barbara A. Fitzgerald joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President of Store Operations in September
2000. Prior to joining PETsMART, during 2000, Ms. Fitzgerald was President of Harmon AutoGlass, a
leading provider of auto glass replacement and repair. From 1997 to 2000, Ms. Fitzgerald served in various
positions at Toys ""R'' Us, Inc., including, Vice President, General Manager of New York/New Jersey and
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Vice President of People Development. Prior to that, Ms. Fitzgerald spent 24 years with Sears, Roebuck and
Company in various capacities, including Vice President and General Manager of Sears Hardware Stores.

Kenneth T. Hall was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing OÇcer in January 2003. He
joined PETsMART as Vice President, Strategic Planning and Customer Relationships in October 2000. From
1999 to 2000, Mr. Hall worked as a consultant for Bain & Company, Inc., a global management consulting
Ñrm. From 1998 to 1999, he attended Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration. From
1992 to 1997, Mr. Hall held various operational and Ñnancial positions at EXXON Company, U.S.A.

David L. King joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President and Chief Information OÇcer in March
2000. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. King held various positions at JDA Software, Inc., a software and consulting
provider for the retail industry, including Director of Consulting and Director of Sales. From 1994 to 1997,
Mr. King served as Director of Systems and Logistics at Salinas y Rocha, in Mexico City. Prior to that,
Mr. King held positions at Datamerica Corporation, Tymshare, Inc. and Boeing Computer Services, Inc. He
was also the President and owner of two software and information system consulting Ñrms, KingTec
International, Inc. and D.L. King & Associates, Inc.

Timothy E. Kullman joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer in July
2002. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Kullman was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer for
Hagemeyer North America Holdings, Inc., part of a global distribution company based in the Netherlands.
From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Kullman served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer of Genuardi's
Family Markets, Inc., a regional grocery retailer. From 1994 to 1997, Mr. Kullman served as Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial OÇcer, Treasurer and Secretary for Delchamps, Inc., a grocery retailer in the
southeastern United States. Prior to that, he held various positions with Farm Fresh, Inc., Blue Cross Blue
Shield of Michigan, and Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the predecessor to Deloitte & Touche LLP.

David K. Lenhardt joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President of Services, Strategic Planning and
Business Development in October 2000. From 1996 to 2000, Mr. Lenhardt was a manager with Bain &
Company, Inc., where he led consulting teams for retail, technology, and e-commerce clients. Prior to that, he
worked in the corporate Ñnance and Latin American groups of Merrill Lynch & Co.'s investment banking
division.

Mark D. Mumford was appointed Vice President, Controller, and Chief Accounting OÇcer in March
2003. He joined PETsMART as Vice President of Finance in August 2001. From 2000 to 2001, he was a
Director in the Financial Advisory Services group at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. From 1990 to 2000,
Mr. Mumford held various executive positions at MicroAge, Inc., including Senior Vice President of
Operations, Vice President of Finance, and Controller, as well as Chief Financial OÇcer and Chief
Information OÇcer of Pinacor, Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary of MicroAge, Inc. In April 2000, Microage,
Inc. Ñled for protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. He started his career in
public accounting with Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the predecessor to Deloitte & Touche LLP.

David A. Quinn was appointed Senior Vice President of Distribution in January 2002. Mr. Quinn joined
PETsMART as Vice President of Distribution in September 1999. From 1990 to 1999, he was Director of
Distribution and TraÇc for the Waccamaw Corporation/Home Place. Prior to that, Mr. Quinn was Divisional
Director of Distribution for Lazarus Department Stores.

Anthony N. Truesdale was appointed Senior Vice President of Merchandising in June 2000.
Mr. Truesdale joined PETsMART as Vice President of Hardgoods Merchandising in January 1999. He took
on the import business for PETsMART in August 1999, and in October 1999, he was promoted to Senior Vice
President of Merchandising for Hardgoods and Specialty. From 1997 to 1999, he served as Senior Manager in
Produce for J. Sainsbury, plc., in the United Kingdom. Prior to that, Mr. Truesdale spent 18 years in various
operating and merchandising functions at Shaws Supermarkets, Inc., a subsidiary of J. Sainsbury plc, in New
England before taking the United Kingdom assignment.
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Item 2. Properties

Our stores are generally located in sites co-anchored by strong destination superstores and typically are in
or near major regional shopping centers. The following table summarizes the locations of the stores by country
and state at February 2, 2003:

Number of
United States: Stores

AlabamaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4

ArizonaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28

ArkansasÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

California ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 63

ColoradoÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24

Connecticut ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1

Delaware ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2

Florida ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38

GeorgiaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28

Idaho ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2

Illinois ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 30

Indiana ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14

Iowa ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1

Kansas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7

Kentucky ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

Louisiana ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8

Maryland ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21

Massachusetts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6

Michigan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15

Minnesota ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11

Mississippi ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

Missouri ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11

MontanaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2

Nebraska ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

Nevada ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10

New Hampshire ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2

New Jersey ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15

New Mexico ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4

New York ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13

North Carolina ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19

Ohio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22

OklahomaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7

Oregon ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6

Pennsylvania ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19

Rhode Island ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1

South Carolina ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5

TennesseeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9

Texas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 55

Utah ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8
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Number of
United States: Stores

Vermont ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1

VirginiaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21

Washington ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15

West VirginiaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1

WisconsinÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

Total U.S. stores ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 564

CanadaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19

Total North America stores ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 583

We lease substantially all of our stores, retail distribution centers, corporate oÇces, and certain
equipment under noncancellable operating leases. The terms of the store leases, other than leases under our
structured lease facilities, described below, generally range from 10 to 25 years and typically allow us to renew
for three to Ñve additional Ñve-year terms. Store leases, excluding renewal options, expire at various dates
through 2020. Certain leases require payment of property taxes, utilities, common area maintenance, and
insurance and, if annual sales at certain stores exceed speciÑed amounts, provide for additional rents. To date,
we have paid minimal additional rent.

Our corporate oÇces cover approximately 186,000 square feet and the lease for this space expires in 2010.
Our distribution centers and respective lease expirations are as follows:

Square Lease
Location Footage Expiration

Ennis, Texas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 230,000 2013

Columbus, Ohio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 613,000 2010

Gahanna, Ohio ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 276,000 2010

Hagerstown, MarylandÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 252,000 2005

Newnan, Georgia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 200,000 2006

Phoenix, Arizona ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 625,000 2021

Reno, Nevada ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150,000 2013

We also own and operate a catalog fulÑllment and equine distribution center in Brockport, New York,
which covers approximately 392,000 square feet.

Structured Lease Facilities

We have entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of structured lease Ñnancing. The
structured lease Ñnancing facilities provided a special purpose entity, not aÇliated with us, with the necessary
Ñnancing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once construction has been completed,
another special purpose entity, also not aÇliated with us, leases the completed stores to us for a four-year
term. After the four-year term has expired, we are required to payoÅ the balance of the Ñnancing, provide for
the sale of the properties to a third party, or pay a guaranteed residual amount. We have one outstanding
special purpose entity lease remaining that encompasses seven stores and two properties, and approximately
$27.7 million is due in 2004. The lease is supported by a letter of credit issued under our revolving credit
facility, which contains certain terms with which we must comply. There are no substantive Ñnancial
covenants associated with the lease facility.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, ""Consolida-
tion of Variable Interest Entities,'' or FIN 46, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
""Consolidated Financial Statements,'' on January 17, 2003. FIN 46 requires that an entity holding a majority
of the ""variable interests'' of a ""variable interest entity'' must consolidate the operations of the variable
interest entity of which it is the primary beneÑciary. As currently constituted, our structured lease Ñnancing
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facilities may involve a variable interest entity of which we are the primary beneÑciary. If so determined, we
would be required to consolidate the seven stores and two properties at the beginning of the third quarter of
Ñscal 2003, which would increase Ñxed assets and debt by $27.7 million, and also have an impact on
depreciation expense. However, we may be able to restructure these leases so as not to require consolidation.
We are also considering other options related to the disposition of these properties, and can provide no
assurance that a loss or impairment charge will not be incurred due to current real estate market conditions.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On January 16, 2001, certain former stockholders of Pet City Holdings, a U.K. corporation, or Pet City,
including Richard Northcott, who was a PETsMART board member from December 1996 to September
1997, Ñled two complaints, one in federal court and one in state court, seeking damages against PETsMART
and certain of its former or current oÇcers and directors. These plaintiÅs subsequently dismissed the state
court complaint, prior to the issuance of any rulings on the merits, and added the claims from the state
complaint to a consolidated federal complaint. The consolidated complaint related to the 1996 acquisition of
Pet City by PETsMART. PlaintiÅs alleged misrepresentations or omissions that misled the shareholders of
Pet City concerning PETsMART's business, Ñnancial status, and prospects. As a result of a series of
mediations before a retired federal magistrate judge, the parties settled the case out of court in January 2003
and stipulated to a dismissal of plaintiÅs' consolidated complaint with prejudice. The dismissal order was
entered by the court on February 18, 2003. Subsequent to February 2, 2003, we paid a settlement fee of
$16.4 million, and in 2001 and 2002, we recorded approximately $5.0 million and $13.2 million, respectively,
for settlement fees and legal costs associated with the litigation.

We are involved in various other legal proceedings that we do not believe are material to our business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the Ñscal year
ended February 2, 2003.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

Price Range of Common Stock and Dividend Policy. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ
National Market under the symbol PETM. The following table indicates the intra-day quarterly high and low
price per share of our common stock. These prices represent quotations among dealers without adjustments for
retail mark-ups, markdowns or commissions, and may not represent actual transactions.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2003

First Quarter ended May 5, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $16.25 $ 9.55

Second Quarter ended August 4, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18.29 12.15

Third Quarter ended November 3, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21.00 13.26

Fourth Quarter ended February 2, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.00 14.48

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2002

First Quarter ended April 29, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4.37 $ 2.50

Second Quarter ended July 29, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.10 4.09

Third Quarter ended October 28, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.02 5.65

Fourth Quarter ended February 3, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11.13 7.26
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We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We presently intend to retain earnings for use
in the operation and expansion of our business and, therefore, do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. In addition, our revolving credit agreement restricts the payment of dividends.

On April 4, 2003, there were 6,399 holders of record of our common stock.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The information required by this Item is attached at Appendix A.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could materially diÅer from those discussed
here. Factors that could cause or contribute to such diÅerences include, but are not limited to, those discussed
in this section, as well as in the sections entitled Distribution, Information Systems, Competition, Government
Regulation, and Business Risks included in Item 1 Part I of this Form 10-K.

Overview

Based on our 2002 sales of $2.7 billion, we are the leading provider of products, services, and solutions for
the lifetime needs of pets in North America. As of February 2, 2003, we operated 583 retail stores in North
America, typically ranging in size from 19,000 to 26,000 square feet. We also reach customers through our
direct marketing channels, PETsMART.com, the Internet's most popular pet e-commerce site, as well as a
web site dedicated to equine products, and two major branded catalogs.

We complement our extensive product assortment with a wide selection of value-added pet services,
including grooming and pet training. Virtually all our stores oÅer complete pet training services and feature pet
styling salons that provide high quality grooming services. In addition, through our strategic relationship with
BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM, we oÅer full service veterinary care in approximately 300 of our stores.

During 2002, we opened 27 new retail stores, closed four stores, and remodeled approximately 230 stores
under a new store format. The new store format eliminates most of the high steel shelving, organizes
consumable and hard good products by pet species, and also places a stronger visual emphasis on in-store
services like training, grooming, adoptions, and veterinary care. As of February 3, 2002, approximately 69% of
our stores were in this new format. We continue to invest in training for our approximately 23,500 associates as
part of our on-going cultural shift with an emphasis on customer service and providing pet solutions. We
opened our sixth forward distribution center in 2002, which supply the stores with rapid replenishments and
have contributed to the reduction in overall store inventory. In 2003, we expect to open approximately 60 new
stores, net of store closures, and remodel approximately 140 stores under the new store format.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our Ñnancial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated Ñnancial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these Ñnancial statements requires us
to make estimates and judgments that aÅect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses.
On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates related to reserves for store closures, inventory shrinkage, and
insurance liabilities and other reserves. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may diÅer from these estimates under diÅerent assumptions or conditions. We believe
the following critical accounting policies aÅect our more signiÑcant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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Inventory Shrinkage Reserves

Our stores perform physical inventories once a year, and in between the physical inventories, the stores
perform cycle counts on certain inventory items. Our forward distribution centers and distribution centers
perform cycle counts encompassing all inventory items every quarter. Therefore, as of a reporting period, there
will be stores that will have certain inventory items that have not been counted. Due to the holiday season at
the end of the Ñscal year, the stores do not perform physical inventories during the last quarter of the Ñscal
year, but continue to perform cycle counts on certain inventory items. Therefore, as of each reporting period,
we estimate the inventory shrinkage reserve for uninventoried sales based on a two-year historical trend
analysis by store. During 2002, we changed the historical trend from a three-year historical trend to a two-year
trend because we believe the actual shrink results in 2000 were skewed by the eÅects of the implementation of
our business software, and are not indicative of our current results. As of February 2, 2003 and February 3,
2002, we recorded approximately $10.2 million and $9.1 million, respectively, for inventory shrinkage reserves.

Reserve for Closed Stores

We continuously evaluate the performance of our retail stores and periodically close those that are
underperforming. We establish reserves for future rental payments on closed stores and terminated subleases,
and classify these costs in general and administrative expenses. The costs for future rental payments associated
with closed stores are calculated using the net present value method, at a risk-free interest rate, over the
remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income. Judgment is used to estimate the underlying real
estate market related to the expected sublease income, and we can make no assurances that additional charges
to the current stores will not be required based on the changing real estate environment. As of February 2,
2003 and February 3, 2002, we had 18 and 26 stores included in our closed store reserves, of which nine and
nine were under sublease agreements, respectively. We have assumed that as of February 2, 2003, six stores
will have sublease income in future periods, which represents a reduction to the accrual of $18.8 million. If
these sublease assumptions were moved out a year later, the reserve would be increased by approximately
$1.0 million. In 2001 and 2002, we closed seven stores and four stores, respectively, and we anticipate closing
seven stores in 2003. As of February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, the total remaining gross rents for such
closed stores was $46.5 million and $49.5 million, which was reduced by expected sublease income of
$37.2 million and $37.2 million, respectively, for a net balance of approximately $9.3 million and $12.3 mil-
lion, respectively, for closed store reserves.

Insurance Liabilities and Reserves

We maintain standard property and casualty insurance on all of our properties, product liability insurance
covering products and the sale of live pets, self-insured health plans, and worker compensation insurance.
Property insurance covers approximately $1.2 billion in buildings and contents, including furniture and
Ñxtures, leasehold improvements and inventory. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance
policies, we retain the initial risk of loss of $0.25 million for each policy per occurrence. We establish reserves
for losses based on independent actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that period's claims,
including losses for which claims have been incurred but not reported. Loss estimates rely on actuarial
observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events, and changes in such assumptions could
result in an adjustment to the reserves. As of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, approximately
$22.1 million and $16.8 million, respectively, in reserves were recorded related to casualty and workers
compensation insurance policies. The increase in the reserves primarily related to the addition of the 2002
claims, and an overall increase in medical costs.

Income Taxes

We establish deferred income tax assets and liabilities for temporary diÅerences between the Ñnancial
reporting bases and the income tax bases of our assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in
eÅect when such assets or liabilities are realized or settled. We record a valuation allowance on the deferred
income tax assets to reduce the total to an amount that management believes is more likely than not to be
realized. Valuation allowances at February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, were principally to oÅset certain
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deferred income tax assets for operating and capital loss carryforwards. The change in the valuation allowance
during 2002 and 2001 did not provide a complete income statement beneÑt due primarily to a reduction in
deferred tax assets and certain net operating and capital loss carryforwards, for which no beneÑt was recorded.

Results of Operations

The following table presents the percent to net sales of certain items included in our consolidated
statements of operations:

Fiscal Year Ended

Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 28,
2003 2002 2001

Statement of Operations Data:

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of sales(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.8 73.1 76.2

Gross proÑt(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29.2 26.9 23.8

Operating expenses(1)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18.5 19.3 19.0

General and administrative expenses(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.3 4.8 3.6

Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.4 2.8 1.2

Interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.1 0.1 0.1

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.8) (1.1) (1.1)

Income before equity loss in PETsMART.com, income tax expense
and minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.7 1.8 0.2

Equity loss in PETsMART.comÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (1.5)

Income (loss) before income tax expense and minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.7 1.8 (1.3)

Income tax expense(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.4 0.3 0.1

Income (loss) before minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.3 1.5 (1.4)

Minority interest in subsidiary lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.1 Ì

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.3% 1.6% (1.4)%

(1) In 2000 and 2001, we reclassiÑed certain warehousing and distribution costs related to our PETsMART
Direct operations and certain costs of payroll, fringe beneÑts and supplies relating to our training and
PETsHOTEL services to cost of sales. These costs had been classiÑed in prior periods as operating
expenses.

(2) We adopted SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002,'' that among other things, rescinded SFAS
No. 4, ""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt'' as of August 4, 2002, and as a result,
reclassiÑed the gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million and $4.7 million for 2001 and 2000,
respectively, as a reduction to general and administrative expenses. We also reclassiÑed the related
income tax expense of $0.5 million and $1.9 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, to income tax
expense.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001

Net Sales

Net sales increased $194.2 million, or 7.8%, to $2,695.2 million for 2002, from 2001 sales of
$2,501.0 million. Store sales increased by $205.8 million as a result of 23 additional net stores and a 9.6%
increase in comparable store sales. Fiscal 2001 had 53 weeks compared with 52 weeks in Ñscal 2002. Services
sales increased by 29.4%, or $35.1 million. The increases were partially oÅset by a decrease in direct marketing
channel sales of $46.7 million. As of February 2, 2003, we operated 583 stores, compared with 560 stores as of
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February 3, 2002. In 2002, we opened 27 new stores, and closed four stores. The increase in services revenue,
which includes grooming, training and our three PETsMART PETsHOTELTM operations, was due primarily
to higher volume. The decrease in revenue from direct marketing channels was from lower pet catalog sales,
due to a decision to reduce circulation and advertising in the Ñrst half of 2002, and lower e-commerce sales.
Also, in the fourth quarter of 2001, we sold an ancillary equine catalog to a third party and closed Ñve small
neighborhood PetWise retail stores located in upstate New York, which had been part of the direct marketing
channels business in 2001.

Gross ProÑt

Gross proÑt increased as a percentage of net sales to 29.2% for 2002, from 26.9% for 2001. The increase
primarily reÖected lower product cost of goods sold due to increased sales of higher margin products during
2002, compared with 2001, as well as higher services revenue, which carries a higher margin than
merchandise. Although we have increased the direct marketing gross proÑt margins due to lower distribution
costs, the reduction in the direct marketing sales volumes caused a slight reduction in gross proÑt. We also
continue to leverage expenses in 2002 through lower inventory shrinkage and occupancy costs as a percentage
of sales, compared with 2001. The lower distribution costs for our direct marketing channels were primarily a
result of the beneÑts obtained from their integration in the Ñrst half of 2002.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales to 18.5% for 2002, from 19.3% for 2001. As a
percentage of sales, reductions in equipment rent and advertising expense drove the decrease for 2002,
compared with 2001. In 2002, we shifted our focus to using available cash to purchase new equipment and
equipment expiring under lease agreements rather than entering into new equipment lease contracts. The
result of this shift in focus is higher depreciation expense, which partially oÅset the rent expense reduction. In
addition, reductions of operating expenses in the direct marketing channels contributed to the decrease due
primarily to the beneÑts obtained from their integration in the Ñrst half of 2002. Advertising expenses
decreased due primarily to reductions in store and direct marketing channels advertising in the Ñrst half of the
year, as well as reductions in catalog distribution during 2002, compared with 2001. An increase in store
incentive bonus expenses as a result of our performance in 2002 partially oÅset the improvements for 2002,
compared with 2001.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales to 4.3% for 2002, from 4.8%
for 2001. In 2002, we recorded $13.2 million related to litigation settlement and costs, which represented 0.5%
of sales. In 2001, we recorded $6.9 million for impairment charges, $3.7 million in charges related to the
reorganization of subsidiaries, $13.5 million for store closures, $5.0 million related to litigation costs, and
$0.7 million for other asset write downs. We also recorded cash proceeds of $17.0 million associated with a
vendor resolution, totaling net charges of $12.8 million. These charges represented 0.5% of sales. In 2002, the
reductions in our direct marketing channels, due primarily to the beneÑts obtained from their integration in
the Ñrst half of 2002, as well as credits received through a resolution for vendor services, were partially oÅset
by higher bonus accruals related to our performance for 2002, and higher costs associated with employee
beneÑts and insurance.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased to $20.8 million for 2002, from $27.4 million for 2001. The decrease was
primarily due to the retirement and conversion of the 63/4% Subordinated Convertible Notes, or the Notes, in
the Ñrst quarter of 2002. For 2001, interest expense also included higher bank fees due to the expensing of
unamortized fees when we entered into a new credit agreement in April 2001. The decrease was partially oÅset
by higher interest as a result of additional capital leases entered into in 2002 and 2001.
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Equity Loss in PETsMART.com and Minority Interest

In January 2002, we acquired all the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders
for approximately $9.5 million.

Income Tax Expense

For 2002, the $65.0 million income tax expense represents an eÅective rate of 42.2%. For 2001, the
$8.0 million income tax expense included a $10.3 million tax beneÑt associated with the June 2001 increase in
ownership of PETsMART.com and a tax expense of $18.3 million for 2001 results, or an eÅective rate of
40.4%.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000

Net Sales

Net sales increased $276.8 million, or 12.4%, to $2,501.0 million for 2001, from $2,224.2 million for 2000.
Store sales increased by $234.7 million as a result of 27 additional net stores and a 6.5% increase in
comparable store sales. As of February 3, 2002, we operated 560 stores compared with 533 stores as of
January 28, 2001. In 2001, we opened 34 new stores and closed seven stores. Also contributing to the sales
increase was a $27.3 million increase, or 29.7% increase in services revenue, which includes grooming,
training, and PETsHOTEL revenue in 2001 compared with 2000. In 2001, net sales related to the catalog and
Internet businesses increased $14.8 million, or 15.5%, to $110.9 million, compared with $96.1 million in 2000.
The increase in catalog and Internet sales was due to the inclusion of PETsMART.com's sales in 2001 due to
consolidation accounting that began in December of 2000. Fiscal 2001 had 53 weeks compared with 52 weeks
in Ñscal 2000, and this additional week also contributed to the increase in net sales.

Gross ProÑt

Gross proÑt increased as a percentage of net sales to 26.9% in 2001, from 23.8% in 2000. The increase
primarily reÖected increased services revenue, which carries a higher margin than merchandise, lower product
cost of goods sold, and sales of higher margin products for retail stores, as compared with 2000. These
increases were partially oÅset by increased warehouse and distribution costs and the addition of cost of goods
sold related to PETsMART.com. Warehouse and distribution costs were higher in 2001 due to the additional
forward distribution centers and our change in distributing directly to the stores from the forward distribution
centers as opposed to the stores receiving vendor deliveries. In 2001, we recorded a charge to cost of sales of
$2.1 million associated with a write down of PETsMART Direct's inventory, which had an impact of 0.1%.
The reduction in product cost of goods sold was primarily the result of our shift in purchasing arrangements
with vendors, as well as a decrease in costs related to shrinkage. The shift from the traditional volume and
promotional discounts to a more competitive unit pricing began during the Ñrst quarter of 2000, and the
majority of those purchase cost reductions have now been cycled through the inventory system.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses, which include payroll and beneÑts, advertising for stores and catalog production, pre-
opening, and other store level expenses, increased as a percentage of net sales to 19.3% in 2001 from 19.0% in
2000. Retail store operating expenses primarily drove the increase due primarily to increased payroll and
beneÑts as a result of higher wages and additional personnel. Store operating expenses related to our catalog
and Internet businesses increased primarily due to additional expenses from PETsMART.com, which were
not included on a consolidated basis through December 20, 2000.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales increased to 4.8% in 2001, from 3.6% in
2000. In 2001, we recorded $6.9 million for impairment charges, $3.7 million in charges related to the
reorganization of subsidiaries, $13.5 million for store closures, $5.0 million related to litigation costs, and
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$0.7 million for other asset write downs. We also recorded cash proceeds of $17.0 million associated with a
vendor resolution, totaling net charges of $12.8 million. These charges represented 0.5% of sales. As a result of
our adoption of SFAS No. 145 in 2002, we reclassiÑed the gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million
and $4.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, to general and administrative expenses. The reclassiÑcation
of $4.7 million in 2000 represented 0.2% of sales. Excluding the net charges in 2001 and the reclassiÑcation of
the gain, general and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased personnel training expenses,
increased group medical expenses, and higher bonus accruals related to our performance for 2001. Excluding
the net charges, general and administrative expenses related to our catalog and Internet businesses increased
primarily due to additional expenses from PETsMART.com, which were not included on a consolidated basis
through December 20, 2000.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased to $27.4 million in 2001, from $23.4 million for 2000, primarily due to
unamortized bank fees that were written-oÅ when we entered into a new credit agreement on April 30, 2001,
as well as higher interest as a result of additional capital leases entered into in 2001. Those increases were
partially oÅset by a reduction in the amount of our Notes outstanding as a result of debt repurchases of
$7.8 million made during 2001.

Equity Loss in PETsMART.com and Minority Interest

From January 31, 2000 through December 20, 2000, we had a 46.3% equity investment in
PETsMART.com and recognized an equity loss of $33.1 million. In December 2000, we acquired a controlling
interest in PETsMART.com of approximately 81.7% and accounted for the results of operations of
PETsMART.com under the consolidation method of accounting for all subsequent periods.

Minority interest in subsidiary loss of $2.3 million represents the recognition of our minority interest in
the pre-tax loss of PETsMART.com for 2001, compared with $0.3 million from December 20, 2000 through
January 28, 2001.

Income Tax Expense

In 2001, the $8.0 million income tax expense includes a tax beneÑt of $10.3 million associated with the
June 2001 increase in ownership of PETsMART.com, and tax expense of $18.3 million for the 2001 results, or
an eÅective rate of 40.4%. Our 2000 eÅective tax rate diÅered from the expected United States federal income
tax rate due principally to the non-deductible losses generated by PETsMART.com and other permanent
diÅerences. Excluding the eÅects of non-deductible losses generated by PETsMART.com, our annual
eÅective tax rate for 2000 was 41.2%. EÅective for 2001, losses from PETsMART.com are included in our
consolidated federal income tax return.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow and Balance Sheet Data

Cash provided by operations increased $32.8 million to $222.8 million in 2002, compared with
$190.0 million in 2001. The increase was driven by higher net income and depreciation and amortization, and
was partially oÅset by decreases in changes in assets and liabilities.

Merchandise accounts payable leveraging (the percentage of merchandise inventory Ñnanced by vendor
credit terms, i.e., accounts payable divided by merchandise inventory), increased to 39.7% as of February 2,
2003, compared with 34.4% as of February 3, 2002. Inventory balances were $257.1 million as of February 2,
2003, and $271.3 million as of February 3, 2002. Average retail store inventory, which represents total ending
inventory divided by the open stores at the end of the period, decreased to approximately $0.44 million per
store as of February 2, 2003, compared with approximately $0.49 million per store as of February 3, 2002.
Decreases over the prior year reÖect favorable eÇciencies gained in stores served by forward distribution
centers as well as lower inventory levels in stores with our new store format. With the opening of our sixth
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forward distribution center in June 2002, the majority of our store base is being served by forward distribution
centers. Approximately 69% of our stores are operating under the new store format.

Our primary long-term capital requirements consist of opening new stores, reformatting existing stores to
our new store format, and expenditures associated with the equipment and computer software in support of our
system initiatives. For 2002, we incurred $163.7 million in capital expenditures, compared with $105.1 million
for 2001. The increase in spending was primarily due to the store reformatting initiatives, lease buyouts, and
equipment and computer software in support of our systems initiatives.

In January 2002, we acquired all the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders
for approximately $9.5 million. The approximately $9.5 million was actually paid during 2002. In June 2001,
we purchased 1,020,789 shares of PETsMART.com's convertible voting preferred stock from minority
shareholders for approximately $0.7 million.

Net cash provided by Ñnancing activities for 2002 increased $85.9 million primarily as a result of the
$71.1 million in proceeds from the issuance of common stock, which is comprised of $43.9 million in proceeds
from the oÅering, as discussed in the section entitled ""Common Stock OÅering'' below, and the $27.2 million
in proceeds from the issuance of common stock as a result of stock option exercises and the employee stock
purchase program.

Common Stock and Notes Repurchase Program

In April 2000, our Board of Directors approved the purchase of up to $25.0 million of common stock or
Notes annually for each of the next three years. In 2001, we used $6.4 million to purchase our Notes with a
face value of $7.8 million. In February and March 2002, the remaining balance of $173.5 million of Notes was
called for redemption, resulting in the repurchase of Notes for approximately $0.3 million in cash and the
conversion of the remainder into approximately 19,800,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of
$8.75 per share.

In March 2003, our Board of Directors approved the purchase of up to $35.0 million of common stock,
annually for each of the next three years, ending March 2006.

Common Stock OÅering

In July 2002, we Ñled a registration statement on Form S-3 for a public oÅering of 14,500,000 shares of
our common stock, plus an over-allotment option of 2,175,000 shares. Of these shares, 13,182,584 were oÅered
by entities aÇliated with Carrefour SA, and we oÅered 1,317,416 shares, plus the shares in the over-allotment
option.

On August 5, 2002, we completed the sale of the 1,317,416 shares of common stock for $13.40 per share,
resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $16.9 million. On August 12, 2002, the
underwriters exercised the over-allotment option and purchased 2,175,000 additional shares for $13.40 per
share, resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $27.8 million. We incurred costs
associated with the oÅering of approximately $0.8 million.

Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

All our stores are leased facilities. We opened 27 new stores, closed four stores, and reformatted
approximately 230 stores in 2002. Each new store requires capital expenditures of approximately $0.8 million
for Ñxtures, equipment and leasehold improvements, approximately $0.3 million for inventory, and approxi-
mately $0.1 million for preopening costs. In the Ñrst year, we expect a new store to generate approximately
$3.2 million in sales. We expect new stores to generate comparable store sales growth in the range of 17% to
19% in year two, 12% to 13% in year three, 7% to 8% in year four, and 5% to 6% in year Ñve. To convert a store
to our new store format costs approximately $0.2 million per store. Based on our current plan for
approximately 60 net new stores and approximately 140 reformatted stores during 2003, as well as our planned
investment in the development of our information systems, we expect capital spending to be approximately
$165.0 to $175.0 million for 2003.
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We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents, together with cash Öows from operations, borrowing
capacity under our bank credit facility and available lease Ñnancing, will provide adequate funds for our
foreseeable working capital needs, planned capital expenditures and debt service obligations. Our ability to
fund our operations, make planned capital expenditures, scheduled debt payments, and reÑnance indebted-
ness, depends on our future operating performance and cash Öow, which are subject to prevailing economic
conditions and to Ñnancial, business and other factors, some of which are beyond our control.

OÅ Balance Sheet Arrangements

Operating and Capital Lease Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations, net of estimated sublease income, at
February 2, 2003, and the eÅect that such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash Öows in
future periods (in thousands).

Payments Due in Fiscal Year

2004 & 2006 & 2008 and
Contractual Obligation 2003 2005 2007 Beyond Total

Operating lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $174,328 $372,490 $323,730 $1,055,400 $1,925,948

Capital lease obligations(1)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,745 40,261 40,392 242,387 346,785

Purchase obligationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,500 Ì Ì Ì 18,500

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $216,573 $412,751 $364,122 $1,297,787 $2,291,233

(1) Includes $179.8 million in interest.

The operating lease payment schedule above is shown net of estimated sublease income. Sublease income
for operating and capital leases is as follows: 2003: $2,641,000; 2004: $2,457,000; 2005: $2,502,000;
2006: $2,558,000; 2007: $2,580,000, and thereafter, $12,013,000.

Letters of Credit

We issue letters of credit for guarantees provided for the structured lease facilities, insurance programs,
import purchases and utilities. As of February 2, 2003, $47.4 million was outstanding under our letters of
credit.

Purchase Obligation

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we entered into a purchase agreement for an aircraft that will require a Ñnal
payment of approximately $18.5 million in the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003.

Structured Lease Facilities

We have entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of a structured lease Ñnancing. The
structured lease Ñnancing facilities provide a special purpose entity, not aÇliated with us, with the necessary
Ñnancing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once construction has been completed,
another special purpose entity, also not aÇliated with us, leases the completed stores to us for a four-year
term. After the four-year term has expired, we are required to pay the balance of the Ñnancing, provide for the
sale of the properties to a third party, or pay a guaranteed residual amount.

We have one outstanding special purpose entity lease remaining as of February 3, 2002, which
encompasses seven stores and two properties. Included in the operating leases for 2004 is the Ñnal payment of
approximately $27.7 million. The lease is supported by a letter of credit issued under our revolving credit
facility, which contains certain terms with which we must comply. There are no substantive Ñnancial
covenants associated with the lease facility.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, ""Consolida-
tion of Variable Interest Entities,'' or FIN 46, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
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""Consolidated Financial Statements,'' on January 17, 2003. FIN 46 requires that an entity holding a majority
of the ""variable interests'' of a ""variable interest entity'' must consolidate the operations of the variable
interest entity of which it is the primary beneÑciary. As currently constituted, our structured lease Ñnancing
facilities may involve a variable interest entity of which we are the primary beneÑciary. If so determined, we
would be required to consolidate the seven stores and two properties at the beginning of the third quarter of
2003, which would increase Ñxed assets and debt by $27.7 million, and also have an impact on depreciation
expense. However, we may be able to restructure these leases so as not to require consolidation. We are also
considering other options related to the disposition of these properties, and can provide no assurance that a loss
or impairment charge will not be incurred due to current real estate market conditions.

Related Party Transactions

We have an investment in MMI Holdings, Inc., or MMIH, a provider of veterinary and other pet related
services. MMIH, through a wholly owned subsidiary, Medical Management International, Inc., or MMI,
operates full-service veterinary hospitals and wellness hospitals inside approximately half our stores, under the
name BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM. Philip L. Francis, our Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer, and
Robert F. Moran, our President and Chief Operating OÇcer, are members of the board of directors of
MMIH. Our investment consists of common and convertible preferred stock. As of February 2, 2003, we
owned approximately 15% of the voting stock, and approximately 31% of the combined voting and non-voting
stock of MMIH. We charge MMI licensing fees for the space used by the veterinary hospitals, and we treat
this income as a reduction of the retail stores' occupancy costs. We record occupancy costs as a component of
cost of sales in our consolidated Ñnancial statements. Licensing fees are determined by Ñxed costs per square
foot, adjusted for the number of days the hospitals are open and sales volumes achieved. We recognized
licensing fees of approximately $8.3 million and $6.7 million during 2002 and 2001, respectively. Licensing
fees receivable from MMI totaled $2.9 million and $2.2 million at February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002,
respectively, and were included in receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Credit Facility

On April 30, 2001, we entered into a new credit arrangement with a group of lenders that provides for
borrowings of up to $250.0 million, including a sublimit of up to $150.0 million for letters of credit, which was
to expire on April 30, 2004. Borrowings and letter of credit issuances under the facility are subject to a
borrowing base and bear interest, at our option, at either the bank's prime rate or LIBOR, plus applicable
margins to be determined based on certain Ñnancial tests. Due to our desire for greater Öexibility in our
Ñnancial covenants and our historically limited use of the credit facility, we amended the credit facility on
June 20, 2002, to reduce the available commitment to $200.0 million, extend the maturity by two years to
April 30, 2006, and amend certain covenants. The credit facility restricts the payment of dividends. The
arrangement is secured by substantially all our personal property assets and certain real property. As of
February 2, 2003, we had no borrowings outstanding under the credit facility.

Seasonality and InÖation

Our business is subject to some seasonal Öuctuations and we typically realize a higher portion of our net
sales and operating proÑts during the fourth quarter. As a result of this seasonality, we believe that quarter-to-
quarter comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and that these comparisons cannot
be relied upon as indicators of future performance. In addition, sales of certain products and services designed
to address pet health needs are seasonal. Because our stores typically draw customers from a large trade area,
sales may also be impacted by adverse weather or travel conditions, which are more prevalent during certain
seasons of the year.

Our results of operations and Ñnancial position are presented based upon historical cost. Although we
cannot accurately anticipate the eÅect of inÖation on our operations, we do not believe inÖation is likely to
materially harm our net sales or results of operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,'' which supercedes SFAS No. 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of'' and amends Accounting Principles Board Opinion, or APB, No. 30,
""Reporting the Results of Operations Ì Reporting the EÅects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.'' The new rules apply to the
classiÑcation and impairment analyses conducted on long-lived assets other than certain intangible assets. The
new rules also resolve conÖicting treatment of the impairment of long-lived assets and provide implementation
guidance regarding impairment calculations. SFAS No. 144 also expands the deÑnition of discontinued
operations to include all distinguishable components of an entity that will be eliminated from ongoing
operations in a disposal transaction. We adopted SFAS No. 144 in 2002, and the adoption did not have a
signiÑcant impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002,'' that among other
things, rescinded SFAS No. 4, ""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt.'' With the
rescission of SFAS No. 4, companies generally will no longer classify early extinguishment of debt as an
extraordinary item. The provision is eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, and early
application is encouraged. We adopted the statement as of August 4, 2002, and as a result, reclassiÑed the gain
on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million and $4.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, as a reduction
to general and administrative expenses. We also reclassiÑed the related income tax expense of $0.5 million and
$1.9 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, to income tax expense.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,'' which replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).'' The new standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. The
statement is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. We do
not expect that the adoption will have a signiÑcant impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì
Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS No. 123.'' This statement provides alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. This statement also amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 and ABP No. 28,
""Interim Financial Reporting,'' to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim Ñnancial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and eÅect of the method
used on reported results. We have implemented the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148 for Ñscal 2002
reporting, and eÅective February 2, 2003 regarding disclosure requirements for condensed Ñnancial statements
for interim periods. We will continue to account for stock-based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25,
""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees''.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. Among
other things, the Interpretation requires guarantors to recognize, at fair value, their obligations to stand ready
to perform under certain guarantees. FIN 45 is eÅective for guarantees issued or modiÑed on or after
January 1, 2003. We have adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45 which is eÅective for Ñscal years
ending after December 15, 2002. We believe the adoption of FIN 45 will not have a signiÑcant impact on our
Ñnancial position and future results of operations. FIN 45 also requires guarantors to disclose certain
information for guarantees outstanding at February 2, 2003.

The FASB issued FIN 46, ""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,'' an interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51, ""Consolidated Financial Statements,'' on January 17, 2003. FIN 46 requires that an
entity holding a majority of the ""variable interest'' of a ""variable interest entity'' must consolidate the
operations of the variable interest entity of which it is the primary beneÑciary. As currently constituted, our
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structured lease Ñnancing facilities may involve a variable interest entity of which we are the primary
beneÑciary. If so determined, we would be required to consolidate the seven stores and two properties at the
beginning of the third quarter for 2003, which would increase Ñxed assets and debt by $27.7 million, and also
have an impact on depreciation expense. However, we may be able to restructure these leases so as not to
require consolidation. We are also considering other options related to the disposition of these properties, and
we can provide no assurance that a loss or impairment charge will not be incurred due to current real estate
market conditions.

The Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, released Issue No. 02-16, ""Accounting by a Customer
(including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor,'' in November 2002, which, among
other things, addresses the accounting by a vendor for consideration given to a customer, including a reseller of
the vendor's products, and accounting guidance on how to characterize consideration, when to recognize the
consideration, and how to measure that consideration in the Ñnancial statements. We record vendor
allowances and discounts in the income statement when the purpose for which those monies were designated
is fulÑlled. As such, we do not expect the adoption of EITF No. 02-16 to have a material impact on our results
of operations or Ñnancial position.

Other Information

Consistent with Section 10A(i)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as added by Section 202 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, PETsMART is responsible for listing the non-audit services approved in the
fourth quarter of 2002 by the PETsMART Audit Committee to be performed by Deloitte & Touche LLP, our
independent auditor. Non-audit services are deÑned in the law as services other than those provided in
connection with an audit or a review of the Ñnancial statements of PETsMART. The non-audit services
approved by the Audit Committee in the fourth quarter of 2002 were for various tax compliance and
consultation services, which are considered to be other services. Each of the services has been approved in
accord with a pre-approval from the Audit Committee or the Committee's Chairman pursuant to delegated
authority by the Committee.

Any future increases in net sales and net income will be dependent on the opening of additional stores and
the improved performance of existing stores. In view of the increasing maturity of our store base (an average
age of approximately 6 years as of February 2, 2003), as well as the planned opening of additional stores in
existing markets, which may diminish sales of existing stores, we anticipate that comparable store sales
increases may be lower in future periods. As a result of our expansion plans, we anticipate the timing of new
store openings, related preopening costs, and the amount of revenue contributed by new and existing stores
may cause our quarterly results of operations to Öuctuate. In addition, because new stores tend to experience
higher payroll, advertising, and other store level expenses as a percentage of sales than mature stores, the
impact of new store openings will also contribute to lower store operating margins until they become
established. We charge preopening costs associated with each new location to expense as the costs are
incurred.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

We are subject to certain market risks arising from transactions in the normal course of our business.
Such risk is principally associated with interest rate and foreign exchange Öuctuations, as well as changes in
our credit standing. In addition, a market risk exists associated with the current fuel price. We are assessing
the impact the fuel prices might have on our gross margins, as well as the possibility of increasing retail prices
in certain products to minimize the impact on our results of operations and Ñnancial position.

Interest Rate Risk

We utilize long and short-term bank borrowings to Ñnance the working capital and capital requirements
of the business. We utilize a revolving line of credit to support seasonal working capital needs. There were no
borrowings during 2002. In 2001, we borrowed and repaid a total of $171.2 million at an average interest rate
of 6.44%. Weighted average borrowings during Ñscal 2001 were approximately $4.6 million. Borrowings under
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the revolving line of credit bear interest at the bank's prime rate plus 0% to 0.50% or LIBOR plus 2.00% to
2.50%, at our option.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Canadian subsidiary operates 19 stores and uses the Canadian dollar as the functional currency and
the United States dollar as the reporting currency. We have certain exposures to foreign currency risk.
However, we believe that such exposure does not present a signiÑcant risk due to a relatively limited number
of transactions and accounts denominated in foreign currency. Approximately $62.7 million or 2.3% of our
revenues for 2002, were denominated in the Canadian dollar. Transaction gains and losses on United States
dollar denominated transactions are recorded within general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations, and were $1.5 million in exchange loss for 2002.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is attached as Appendix F.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

The information required by this item with respect to directors is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption ""Election of Directors'' to be contained in our deÑnitive proxy statement in
connection with the solicitation of proxies for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 26,
2003.

The required information concerning our executive oÇcers is contained in Item 1, Part 1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the
captions ""Compensation of Executive OÇcers,'' ""Stock Option Grants, Exercises and Plans,'' and ""Employ-
ment and Severance Arrangements'' to be contained in our proxy statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the
captions ""Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management'' and ""Equity Compensation
Plans'' to be contained in our proxy statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the
caption ""Certain Relationships and Related Transactions'' to be contained in our proxy statement.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

We evaluated the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures to determine whether
they are eÅective in ensuring that we disclose the required information in a timely manner and in accordance
with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and the rules and forms of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Management, including our principal executive oÇcer and principal
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Ñnancial oÇcer, supervised and participated in the evaluation. The evaluation was completed within the
90-day period prior to the Ñling of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The principal executive oÇcer and
principal Ñnancial oÇcer concluded, based on their review, that our disclosure controls and procedures, as
deÑned by Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c), are eÅective and ensure that we disclose the
required information in reports that we Ñle under the Exchange Act and that the Ñlings are recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods speciÑed in Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion rules and forms. No signiÑcant changes were made to our internal controls or other factors that could
signiÑcantly aÅect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, if any, within a
company have been detected.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) The following documents are Ñled as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

1. Financial Statements: The Ñnancial statements of PETsMART are included as Appendix F of
this Annual Report. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule
on page F-1.

2. Financial Statement Schedule: The Ñnancial statement schedule required under the related
instructions is included as Appendix F of this Annual Report. See index to Consolidated Financial
Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on page F-1.

3. Exhibits: The exhibits which are Ñled with this Annual Report or which are incorporated
herein by reference are set forth in the Exhibit Index on page E-1.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

During the quarter ended February 2, 2003, we did not Ñle any reports on Form 8-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,
on April 14, 2003.

PETSMART, INC.

By: /s/ PHILIP L. FRANCIS

Philip L. Francis
Chairman of the Board of Directors,

and Chief Executive OÇcer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Philip L. Francis and Timothy E. Kullman and each of them, as his or her true and
lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his
or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this report on
Form 10-K and to Ñle the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them,
full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratify
and conÑrming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ PHILIP L. FRANCIS Chairman of the Board of Directors, April 14, 2003
and Chief Executive OÇcer (PrincipalPhilip L. Francis

Executive OÇcer)

/s/ TIMOTHY E. KULLMAN Senior Vice President, Chief Financial April 14, 2003
OÇcer (Principal Financial OÇcer)Timothy E. Kullman

/s/ MARK D. MUMFORD Vice President, Controller and Chief April 14, 2003
Accounting OÇcer (PrincipalMark D. Mumford

Accounting OÇcer)

/s/ NORMAN E. BRINKER Director April 14, 2003

Norman E. Brinker

/s/ LAWRENCE A. DEL SANTO Director April 14, 2003

Lawrence A. Del Santo

/s/ JANE EVANS Director April 14, 2003

Jane Evans
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Signature Title Date

/s/ RICHARD K. LOCHRIDGE Director April 14, 2003

Richard K. Lochridge

/s/ BARBARA A. MUNDER Director April 14, 2003

Barbara A. Munder

/s/ THOMAS D. O'MALLEY Director April 14, 2003

Thomas D. O'Malley

/s/ NANCY J. PEDOT Director April 14, 2003

Nancy J. Pedot

/s/ WALTER J. SALMON Director April 14, 2003

Walter J. Salmon

/s/ THOMAS G. STEMBERG Director April 14, 2003

Thomas G. Stemberg
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Philip L. Francis, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of PETsMART, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of operations
and cash Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of this annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data
and have identiÑed for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I have indicated in this annual report whether there
were signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to signiÑcant deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ PHILIP L. FRANCIS

Philip L. Francis
Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive OÇcer
(Principal Executive OÇcer)

Date: April 14, 2003
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I, Timothy E. Kullman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of PETsMART, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of operations
and cash Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of this annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data
and have identiÑed for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcer and I have indicated in this annual report whether there
were signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to signiÑcant deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ TIMOTHY E. KULLMAN

Timothy E. Kullman
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial OÇcer

(Principal Financial OÇcer)

Date: April 14, 2003
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APPENDIX E

PETsMART, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1(1) Restated CertiÑcate of Incorporation of PETsMART.

3.2(2) CertiÑcate of Amendment of Restated CertiÑcate of Incorporation of PETsMART.

3.3(3) Form of CertiÑcate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of
PETsMART.

3.4* Bylaws of PETsMART, as amended.

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 through 3.4.

4.2(4) Form of Stock CertiÑcate.

4.3(5) Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 1997, between PETsMART and Norwest Bank
Minnesota, N.A.

10.1(6) Form of Indemnity Agreement between PETsMART and its Directors and OÇcers.

10.2*‰ 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.

10.3‰(7) 1996 Non-Employee Directors' Equity Plan, as amended.

10.4*‰ 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.

10.5‰(8) 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.6(9) Form of Restricted Stock Bonuses.

10.7* Credit Agreement among PETsMART, certain lenders, and Administrative Lender, dated as of
April 30, 2001, as amended.

10.8(10) Form of Stock Pledge Agreement and Promissory Note with executive oÇcers.
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10.10*‰ Non-QualiÑed Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended.

10.11*‰ Executive Short Term Incentive Plan, as amended.

10.12* Employment Agreement, between PETsMART and Philip L. Francis, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive OÇcer.
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10.15* Form of OÅer Letter between PETsMART and executive oÇcers.

10.16* Executive Change in Control and Severance BeneÑt Plan.

23.1* Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Auditors.

23.2* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants.

99.1* CertiÑcation of Chief Executive OÇcer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
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99.2* CertiÑcation of Chief Financial OÇcer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith.

‰ Compensation plans or arrangements in which directors or executive oÇcers are eligible to participate.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3(i) to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 33-63912), Ñled on June 4, 1993, as amended.
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(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to PETsMART's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-21888), Ñled on August 21, 1997.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 33-63912), Ñled on June 4, 1993, as amended.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to PETsMART's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-21888), Ñled on August 21, 1997.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 33-63912), Ñled on June 4, 1993, as amended.

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-58605), Ñled on July 7, 1998.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-92160), Ñled on July 10, 2002.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to PETsMART's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-52417), Ñled on May 12, 1998.

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to PETsMART's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal
year ended February 3, 2002 (File No. 0-21888), Ñled on April 15, 2002.

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to PETsMART's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal
year ended February 3, 2002 (File No. 0-21888), Ñled on April 15, 2002.

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to PETsMART's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PETsMART, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PETsMART, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the ""Company'') as of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash Öows for each of the three Ñscal years in the period ended
February 2, 2003. These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the
Ñnancial statements of PETsMART.com, Inc. for the period from January 3, 2000 to December 19, 2000, the
Company's investment in which was accounted for by use of the equity method. The Company's equity in
PETsMART.com, Inc.'s net losses of $33,109,000 for the year ended January 28, 2001 is included in the
accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements. The Ñnancial statements of PETsMART.com, Inc. were
audited by other auditors whose report has been provided to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for such company, is based solely on the report of such other auditors. As described in
Note 2 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, on December 20, 2000, the Company acquired a controlling
interest in PETsMART.com, Inc. and the Company has consolidated PETsMART.com, Inc. since that date.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of the other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, such consolidated Ñnancial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the Ñnancial position of PETsMART, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash
Öows for each of the three Ñscal years in the period ended February 2, 2003, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its
method of accounting for goodwill and intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 4, 2003
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
PETsMART.com, Inc.

In our opinion, the balance sheet and the related statement of operations, of stockholders' equity and of
cash Öows (not presented separately herein) present fairly, in all material respects, the Ñnancial position of
PETsMART.com, Inc. (the ""Company'') at December 19, 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash
Öows for the period from January 3, 2000 to December 19, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Century City, California
March 16, 2001
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

February 2, February 3
2003 2002

(In thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 253,936 $137,111

Receivables, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,657 23,263

Merchandise inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 257,090 271,342

Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29,072 15,716

Prepaid expenses and other current assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31,656 29,384

Total current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 581,411 476,816

Property and equipment, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 489,947 394,835

InvestmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33,694 33,694

Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25,798 23,806

Goodwill, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,422 13,222

Intangible assets, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,838 3,102

Other assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,746 15,628

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,158,856 $961,103

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accounts payable and bank overdraft ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 102,169 $ 93,443

Accrued payroll, bonus, and employee beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70,256 51,824

Accrued occupancy expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24,285 26,867

Current maturities of capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,564 11,699

Other accrued expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 84,190 92,341

Total current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 288,464 276,174

Subordinated convertible notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 173,500

Capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 159,443 156,188

Accrued merger, business integration, and restructuring costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,868 3,357

Deferred rents and other liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 27,882 26,078

Total liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 477,657 635,297

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock; $.0001 par value; 10,000 shares authorized, none issued and
outstanding ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì

Common stock; $.0001 par value; 250,000 shares authorized, 139,914 and
112,609 shares issuedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14 11

Additional paid-in capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 642,767 381,999

Deferred compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19) (296)

Retained earnings/(accumulated deÑcit) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40,239 (48,616)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,802) (2,805)

Notes receivable from oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (4,487)

Total stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 681,199 325,806

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,158,856 $961,103

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,695,184 $2,501,012 $2,224,222

Cost of sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,907,144 1,827,527 1,695,228

Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 788,040 673,485 528,994

Operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 498,343 483,657 423,550

General and administrative expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 117,851 119,156 80,196

Operating incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 171,846 70,672 25,248

Interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,803 2,007 2,769

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20,836) (27,436) (23,385)

Income before equity loss in PETsMART.com, income tax
expense, and minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 153,813 45,243 4,632

Equity loss in PETsMART.comÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (33,109)

Income (loss) before income tax expense, and minority interest 153,813 45,243 (28,477)

Income tax expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 64,958 7,972 2,727

Income (loss) before minority interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 88,855 37,271 (31,204)

Minority interest in subsidiary loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 2,296 300

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 88,855 39,567 (30,904)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax expense
(beneÑt):

Foreign currency translation adjustments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,003 (357) (1,144)

Comprehensive income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 89,858 $ 39,210 $ (32,048)

Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic:

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.66 $ 0.35 $ (0.28)

Diluted:

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.63 $ 0.35 $ (0.28)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Amounts (In thousands)

Accumulated
Retained Other Notes

Shares Additional Deferred Earnings/ Comprehensive Receivable
Common Treasury Common Paid-in Compen- (Accumulated Income from Treasury
Stock Stock Stock Capital  sation DeÑcit) (Loss) OÇcers Stock Total

BALANCE AT JANUARY 30, 2000 ÏÏÏ 117,246 (5,550) $12 $400,108 $(1,903) $(57,279) $(1,304) $ Ì $(25,210) $314,424
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 3,300 3,300
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 647 1,823 1,823
Amortization of deferred compensation,

net of award reacquisitions and
adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (140) (1,473) 1,240 (233)

Other comprehensive loss, net of income tax:
Foreign currency translation

adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,144) (1,144)
Notes receivable issued to oÇcers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (4,395) (4,395)
Repayments of notes receivable issued to

oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76 76
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏ (800) (2,368) (2,368)
Net lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (30,904) (30,904)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 28, 2001 ÏÏÏ 117,753 (6,350) 12 403,758 (663) (88,183) (2,448) (4,319) (27,578) 280,579
Tax beneÑt from exercise of stock options 172 172
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,231 5,909 5,909
Amortization of deferred compensation,

net of award reacquisitions and
adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (25) (263) 367 104

Other comprehensive loss, net of income
tax:
Foreign currency translation

adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (357) (357)
Accrued interest on notes receivable

issued to oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (511) (511)
Repayments of notes receivable issued to

oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 343 343
Retirement of treasury stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (6,350) 6,350 (1) (27,577) 27,578 Ì
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39,567 39,567

BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 3, 2002ÏÏÏ 112,609 Ì 11 381,999 (296) (48,616) (2,805) (4,487) Ì 325,806
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 14,112 14,112
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,037 1 27,188 27,189
Issuance of common stock under an

oÅering ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,492 43,925 43,925
Conversion of 63/4% Subordinated

Convertible Notes to common stock ÏÏÏ 19,797 2 174,730 174,732
Amortization of deferred compensation,

net of award reacquisitions and
adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (21) (351) 277 (74)

Compensation expense related to options
held by non-employees ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,164 1,164

Other comprehensive income, net of
income tax:
Foreign currency translation

adjustmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,003 1,003
Accrued interest on notes receivable

issued to oÇcers and notes issued to
oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (717) (717)

Repayments of notes receivable issued to
oÇcersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,204 5,204

Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 88,855 88,855

BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 2, 2003ÏÏÏ 139,914 Ì $14 $642,767 $ (19) $ 40,239 $(1,802) $  Ì $  Ì $681,199

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 88,855 $ 39,567 $ (30,904)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities Ì
Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 77,268 58,709 44,943
Loss on disposal of property and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,377 5,796 1,738
Elimination of goodwill in PETsMART.com ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 8,575 Ì
Impairment charge and write-down of subsidiary assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 9,747 Ì
Equity loss in PETsMART.com ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 33,109
Minority interest in subsidiary ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (2,296) (300)
Capital assets received through vendor settlementÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,442) Ì Ì
Gain on early extinguishment of debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (1,190) (4,688)
Compensation expense related to non-employee optionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,164 Ì Ì
Tax beneÑt from exercise of stock options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,112 172 3,300
Deferred income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (15,941) (26,556) (3,012)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,654 13,525 8,286
Merchandise inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,609 48,651 54,507
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2,250) (12,134) 7,447
Other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,844 (242) (9,453)
Accounts payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,299 (37,651) (357)
Accrued payroll, bonus, and employee beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,433 26,251 (5,210)
Accrued occupancy expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2,584) 6,643 7,040
Accrued merger, business integration and restructuring costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,489) (1,465) (5,643)
Other accrued expensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,052 48,397 8,335
Deferred rents and other liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,809 5,495 1,562

Net cash provided by operating activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 222,770 189,994 110,700

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (163,698) (105,104) (44,860)
Investment in cost holdings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (2,863)
Investment in equity holdingsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (9,500) (741) (21,334)
Purchase of controlling interest in PETsMART.com, net of cash of $6,202 Ì Ì 2,366
Proceeds from sales of property and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 674 28,481 3,819

Net cash used in investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (172,524) (77,364) (62,872)

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 71,114 5,909 1,823
Net repayments (issuances) of notes receivable from oÇcers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,487 (168) (4,319)
Purchase of treasury stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (2,368)
Borrowings from bank credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 171,200 414,000
Repayments of bank credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (171,200) (414,000)
Purchases of subordinated convertible notesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (275) (6,382) (13,630)
Payments on capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (12,304) (12,733) (15,549)
Increase (decrease) in bank overdraftÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,397 (3,806) (9,740)
Payments of deferred Ñnancing fees ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (2,280) (1,461)

Net cash provided by (used in) Ñnancing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 66,419 (19,460) (45,244)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 160 114 (255)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 116,825 93,284 2,329
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 137,111 43,827 41,498

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 253,936 $ 137,111 $ 43,827

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 Ì The Company and its SigniÑcant Accounting Policies

Business

PETsMART, Inc., and subsidiaries (the ""Company'' or ""PETsMART''), is North America's leading
provider of food, supplies, accessories, live pets and professional services for the lifetime needs of pets. As of
February 2, 2003, the Company operated 583 retail stores. The Company oÅers a broad line of products for all
the life stages of pets and is the nation's largest provider of high-quality grooming and pet training services.
Through its strategic relationship with BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM, PETsMART makes full-service
veterinary care available in approximately 300 of its stores. Through its direct marketing channels,
PETsMART is also a leading mail order catalog and e-commerce retailer of pet and equine products and
supplies.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority-
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

The Company's Ñscal year ends on the Sunday nearest January 31. Fiscal 2002 and Ñscal 2000 each
comprised 52 weeks, and Ñscal 2001 comprised 53 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ñnancial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Policies related to
estimates of sublease income, reserves against deferred tax assets, inventory shrinkage, insurance reserves, and
estimated cash Öows in analyses for impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill require signiÑcant estimates.
Actual results could diÅer from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Under the Company's cash management system, a bank overdraft balance exists for the Company's
primary disbursement accounts. This overdraft represents uncleared checks in excess of cash balances in the
related bank accounts. The Company's funds are transferred on an as-needed basis to pay for clearing checks.
As of February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, bank overdrafts of approximately $39,961,000 and $36,564,000,
respectively, were included in accounts payable and bank overdraft in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. The Company considers any liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Vendor Rebates and Promotions

The Company receives income from certain merchandise suppliers in the form of rebates and promotions.
Agreements are made with each individual supplier and income is earned as buying levels are met and/or
cooperative advertising is placed. Rebate income is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales, and cooperative
promotional income is recorded as a reduction of operating expenses. The uncollected amounts of vendor
rebate and promotional income remaining in receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as
of February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002 were approximately $1,263,000 and $2,754,000, respectively.
Unearned rebates recorded as a reduction of inventory in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets were
approximately $962,000 and $377,000 as of February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, respectively.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Merchandise Inventories and Cost of Sales

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the Ñrst-in,
Ñrst-out method based on moving average costs and includes certain procurement and distribution costs
relating to the processing of merchandise. The Company maintains reserves for lower of cost or market, as well
as shrinkage reserves.

Total procurement and distribution costs charged to inventory during Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000 were
$156,926,000, $126,784,000, and $91,987,000, respectively. Procurement and distribution costs remaining in
inventory as of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 were $25,442,000 and $24,778,000, respectively.

Cost of sales includes the following types of expenses: direct costs associated with the products sold,
including inbound freight; salaries of the groomers and trainers and other costs related to the services line of
business; warehousing costs, including procurement and distribution costs; store occupancy and utilities costs;
and inventory shrinkage costs. Also included in cost of goods sold are reductions for vendor rebates and
discounts.

Inventory Shrinkage Reserves

PETsMART stores perform physical inventories once a year and, in between physical inventories, stores
perform cycle counts on certain inventory items. The forward distribution centers and distribution centers
perform cycle counts encompassing all inventory items every quarter. Therefore, as of the end of each
reporting period, there will be stores with certain inventory items that have not been counted. Due to the
holiday season at the end of the Ñscal year, the stores do not perform physical inventories during the last
quarter of the Ñscal year, but continue to perform counts on certain inventory items. As of the end of each
reporting period, the Company estimates the inventory shrinkage reserve by applying a rolling two-year
historical shrink rate against the volume of merchandise sales since the last inventory. During 2002, the
Company changed the historical shrink rate from a three-year historical trend to a two-year trend because the
Company believes the actual shrink results in 2000 were skewed by the eÅects of the implementation of our
business software, and are not indicative of the current results. As of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002,
approximately $10,243,000 and $9,147,000, respectively, were recorded for inventory shrinkage reserves.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on
buildings, furniture, Ñxtures and equipment, and computer software using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements and capital lease assets are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. New store furniture, Ñxtures and equipment held for
sale and leaseback of $9,629,000 as of February 3, 2002, was recorded in receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets, and represent assets purchased that will be sold and leased back upon
consummation of lease transactions as new stores open. In Ñscal 2002, the Company did not lease equipment,
and therefore does not have a balance recorded in receivables as of February 2, 2003.

The Company's property and equipment is depreciated using the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39 years or term of lease

Furniture, Ñxtures, and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 Ì 7 years

Leasehold improvementsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Term of lease

Computer softwareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 Ì 7 years
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Investments

All investments in which the Company has the ability to exercise signiÑcant inÖuence over the investee,
but less than a controlling voting interest, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method of accounting, the Company's share of the investee's earnings or loss is included in consolidated
operating results. Other investments, for which the Company does not have the ability to exercise signiÑcant
inÖuence and for which there is not a readily determinable market value, are accounted for under the cost
method of accounting. The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of its investments accounted for
under the cost method of accounting and as of February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, such investments were
recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying value of goodwill of $14,422,000 and $13,222,000 as of February 2, 2003, and February 3,
2002, respectively, represents the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair market value of their
net assets. In Ñscal 2002, the Company recorded $1,200,000 of additional goodwill related to the payment of
contingent consideration associated with the acquisition of PETsMART PETsHOTELTM in 2000. In the
second quarter of Ñscal 2001, the Company eliminated net goodwill of $8,575,000 associated with the increase
in ownership of PETsMART.com (see Note 2). The goodwill was eliminated in connection with the reversal
of the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets and is discussed under Income Taxes (see Note 7). In
January 2002, the Company acquired all of the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority
stockholders for approximately $9,500,000, and eliminated the minority interest balance of $604,000. The net
amount of $8,896,000 was recorded in goodwill, and is associated with the pet Internet and pet catalog direct
marketing channels, which remain an integral part of the Company's direct marketing strategies.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,'' the Company discontinued
the amortization of goodwill, eÅective February 4, 2002. The Company has completed the transitional
goodwill impairment test for its reporting units and recorded no impairment charge.

A reconciliation of the previously reported net income and earnings per common share to the amounts
adjusted for the exclusion of goodwill amortization, net of the related income tax eÅect, is as follows (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2001 Fiscal 2000

Earnings Per Share Earnings Per Share

Income Basic Diluted (Loss) Basic Diluted

Reported net income (loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $39,567 $0.35 $0.35 $(30,904) $(0.28) $(0.28)

Add back: amortization expense, net
of income tax beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,056 0.01 0.01 383 0.01 0.01

Adjusted net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $40,623 $0.36 $0.36 $(30,521) $(0.27) $(0.27)

Intangible assets consisted solely of trademarks, and changes in the carrying amount for Ñscal 2002, were
as follows (in thousands):

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net

Balance, February 3, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,758 $(1,656) $3,102

Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14 (278) (264)

Balance, February 2, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,772 $(1,934) $2,838
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Amortization expense for the intangible assets was $278,000 during Ñscal 2002. For Ñscal years 2003
through 2007, the Company estimates the amortization expense to be approximately $282,000 each year.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment, based on undiscounted cash Öows, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If this
review indicates that the carrying amount of the long-lived assets is not recoverable, the Company will
recognize an impairment loss, measured by the future discounted cash Öow method or market appraisals. As a
result of continued losses incurred at its PETsMART Direct subsidiary, and an analysis of the current business
model, in Ñscal 2001, the Company performed an impairment analysis in accordance with SFAS No. 121,
""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.'' The analysis
indicated an impairment of $6,927,000 associated with PETsMART Direct's building, Ñxtures, equipment,
goodwill, and software, which was recorded in general and administrative expenses (see Note 6). The fair
value of such assets was determined based on market appraisals and analysis of expected future discounted
cash Öows. During Ñscal 2002 and 2000, no impairment losses were recorded.

Insurance Liabilities and Reserves

The Company maintains standard property and casualty insurance on all of its properties, product liability
insurance covering the sale of live pets, self-insured health plans, and workers compensation insurance.
Property insurance covers approximately $1,200,000,000 in buildings and contents, including furniture and
Ñxtures, leasehold improvements and inventory. Under the Company's casualty and workers compensation
insurance policies, it retains the initial risk of loss of $250,000 for each policy per occurrence. The Company
establishes reserves for losses based on independent actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that
period's claims, including losses for which claims have been incurred but not reported. Loss estimates rely on
actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events, and changes in such assump-
tions could result in an adjustment to the reserves. As of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, the Company
had approximately $22,079,000 and $16,800,000, respectively, in reserves related to casualty and workers
compensation insurance policies.

Other Accrued Expenses

Other accrued expenses consisted of the following (in thousands):

February 2, February 3,
2003 2002

Accrued legal fees and settlement costsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $17,569 $ 6,309

Accrued income and sales taxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,794 24,780

Accrued general liability insuranceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,538 5,074

Accrued advertising ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,149 4,694

Other accrued expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45,140 51,484

$84,190 $92,341

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary diÅerences between the Ñnancial
reporting bases and the income tax bases of the Company's assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected
to be in eÅect when such assets or liabilities are realized or settled. Deferred income tax assets are reduced by
a valuation allowance if, in the judgment of the Company's management, it is more likely than not that such
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

assets will not be realized. In 2001, the Company reversed valuation allowances on deferred tax assets of
$18,885,000 associated with the increase in ownership of PETsMART.com (see Note 2). The impact of the
reversed valuation allowances was included in income tax expense net of the reduction of goodwill discussed
above under Goodwill.

Revenue Recognition

The Company records revenue at the point of sale for retail stores. The shipping terms for catalog and
Internet orders is FOB shipping point, therefore revenue is recognized at the time of shipment for catalog and
electronic commerce sales. Outbound shipping charges are included in net sales when the products are
shipped for catalog and electronic commerce sales. The Company records an allowance for estimated returns
in the period of sale. Revenue for pet grooming and training is recognized when services are performed.

Advertising

The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred, except for direct response advertising,
which is capitalized and amortized over its expected period of future beneÑt, and classiÑes advertising costs
within operating expenses. Total advertising expenditures, net of cooperative income, including direct response
advertising, were $66,180,000, $80,247,000, and $64,675,000 for Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Direct response advertising consists primarily of product catalogs developed by the Company's direct
marketing subsidiaries. The capitalized costs of the direct response advertising are amortized over the six-
month to one-year period following the mailing of the respective catalog. As of February 2, 2003, and
February 3, 2002, $2,020,000 and $2,648,000, respectively, of direct response advertising was included in
prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Reserve for Closed Stores

The Company continuously evaluates the performance of its retail stores and periodically closes those
which are underperforming. The Company establishes reserves for future rental payments on closed stores and
terminated subleases, and classiÑes these costs in general and administrative expenses (see Note 6). The costs
for future rental payments associated with closed stores are calculated using the net present value method, at a
risk-free interest rate, over the remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income. The Company
records such reserves as of the date it ceases use of the property. Judgment is used to estimate the underlying
real estate market related to the expected sublease income, and the Company can make no assurances that
additional charges will not be required based on the changing real estate environment. As of February 2, 2003
and February 3, 2002, approximately $9,261,000 and $12,319,000, respectively, were recorded for closed store
reserves.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The local currency has been used as the functional currency in Canada. The assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are translated into United States dollars at the current rate of exchange at
year-end and revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year. The translation
gains and losses are included as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss), and transaction
gains and losses are included in net income (loss).

Comprehensive Income

The income tax expense (beneÑt) related to the foreign currency translation adjustment, which was the
only component of other comprehensive income, was approximately $592,000, $(210,000), and $(763,000)
for Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average of common
shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income or loss
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for dilutive
stock options and dilutive common shares assumed to be issued on conversion of the Company's 63/4%
Subordinated Convertible Notes (the ""Notes'').

Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-based Compensation'' (""SFAS 123''), the
Company applies the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees'' (""APB 25''), and related interpretations, in recording compensation expense for grants of
equity instruments to employees.

The Company has stock option plans as well an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Note 14). The
Company accounts for those plans under APB Opinion No. 25, and related Interpretations. Accordingly, no
compensation cost is reÖected in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates
the eÅect on net income and net income per common share if the Company had applied the fair-value-based
method of SFAS No. 123 to record compensation expense for stock options and employee stock purchases (in
thousands, except per share data).

Fiscal Year

2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), as reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $88,855 $39,567 $(30,904)

Less: Compensation expense for option awards determined by
the fair value based method, net of related tax eÅectsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8,031) (6,822) (4,384)

Pro forma net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $80,824 $32,745 $(35,288)

Net income (loss) per share

Basic:

Net income (loss), as reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.66 $ 0.35 $ (0.28)

Pro forma net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.60 $ 0.29 $ (0.32)

Diluted:

Net income (loss), as reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.63 $ 0.35 $ (0.28)

Pro forma net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.58 $ 0.29 $ (0.32)

The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions used for grants in Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively: dividend yield of 0.00% in all years;
expected volatility of 63.0 percent, 64.0 percent and 65.0 percent, respectively; risk-free interest rates of 1.32
to 5.11 percent, 2.25 to 5.25 percent and 4.79 to 6.53 percent, respectively; and expected lives of 1.58 years,
1.47 years, and 1.46 years, respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted during Ñscal 2002,
2001, and 2000 was $5.76, $2.06, and $1.97, respectively.
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Financial Instruments

The Company's Ñnancial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. These balances, as
presented in the consolidated Ñnancial statements at February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 approximate their
fair value. As of February 3, 2002 the fair market value of the Notes, approximated $222,080,000 based upon
information provided by a broker dealer that makes a market in the Notes. During February and March 2002,
the entire balance of the Notes was retired for approximately $275,000 in cash and approximately 19,800,000
common shares.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (""SFAS'') No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,'' which supercedes SFAS No. 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of'' and amends Accounting Principles Board Opinion (""APB'') No. 30,
""Reporting the Results of Operations Ì Reporting the EÅects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.'' The new rules apply to the
classiÑcation and impairment analyses conducted on long-lived assets other than certain intangible assets. The
new rules also resolve conÖicting treatment of the impairment of long-lived assets and provide implementation
guidance regarding impairment calculations. SFAS No. 144 also expands the deÑnition of discontinued
operations to include all distinguishable components of an entity that will be eliminated from ongoing
operations in a disposal transaction. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 in 2002, and the adoption did not
have a signiÑcant impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002,'' that among other
things, rescinded SFAS No. 4, ""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt.'' With the
rescission of SFAS No. 4, companies generally will no longer classify early extinguishment of debt as an
extraordinary item. The provision is eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, and early
application is encouraged. The Company adopted the statement as of August 4, 2002, and as a result,
reclassiÑed the gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1,190,000 and $4,688,000 for Ñscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively, as a reduction to general and administrative expenses. The Company also reclassiÑed the related
income tax expense of $476,000 and $1,876,000 for Ñscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, to income tax expense.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,'' which replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).'' The new standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. The
statement is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The
adoption did not have a signiÑcant impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì
Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS No. 123.'' This statement provides alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. This statement also amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 and ABP No. 28,
""Interim Financial Reporting,'' to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim Ñnancial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and eÅect of the method
used on reported results. The Company has implemented the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148 for
Ñscal 2002 reporting, and eÅective February 2, 2003 regarding disclosure requirements for condensed Ñnancial
statements for interim periods. The Company will continue to account for stock-based compensation under
APB Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employee.''
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In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, ""Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.'' Among
other things, the Interpretation requires guarantors to recognize, at fair value, their obligations to stand ready
to perform under certain guarantees. FIN 45 is eÅective for guarantees issued or modiÑed on or after
January 1, 2003. The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45, which is eÅective for Ñscal
years ending after December 15, 2002. The Company believes the adoption will not have a signiÑcant impact
on its Ñnancial position and future results of operations. FIN 45 also requires guarantors to disclose certain
information for guarantees outstanding at February 2, 2003 (see Note 13).

The FASB issued FIN No. 46, ""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,'' an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, ""Consolidated Financial Statements,'' on January 17, 2003. FIN 46
requires that an entity holding a majority of the ""variable interest'' of a ""variable interest entity'' must
consolidate the operations of the variable interest entity of which it is the primary beneÑciary. As currently
constituted, the Company's structured lease Ñnancing facilities may involve a variable interest entity of which
we are the primary beneÑciary. If so determined, the Company would be required to consolidate the seven
stores and two properties at the beginning of the second quarter for Ñscal 2003, which would increase Ñxed
assets and debt by $27,713,000, and also have an impact on depreciation expense. However, the Company may
be able to restructure these leases so as not to require consolidation. The Company is also considering other
options related to the disposition of these properties, and the Company can provide no assurance that a loss or
impairment charge will not be incurred due to current real estate market conditions.

The Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, released Issue No. 02-16, ""Accounting by a Customer
(including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor,'' in November 2002, which, among
other things, addresses the accounting by a vendor for consideration given to a customer, including a reseller of
the vendor's products, and accounting guidance on how to characterize consideration, when to recognize the
consideration, and how to measure that consideration in the Ñnancial statements. The Company records
vendor allowances and discounts in the income statement when the purpose for which those monies were
designated is fulÑlled. As such, the Company does not expect the adoption of EITF No. 02-16 to have a
material impact on the results of operation or Ñnancial position.

ReclassiÑcations

For comparative purposes, certain prior year amounts have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current
year presentation.

Note 2 Ì Acquisition of Controlling Interest in PETsMART.com

In Ñscal 2000, the Company accounted for its investment using the equity method in accordance with
APB No. 18 and recognized its share of the losses in PETsMART.com until it acquired a controlling interest
in PETsMART.com on December 20, 2000 (the ""Transaction''). As a result of the Transaction, the Company
increased its voting ownership percentage to approximately 81.7% and accounted for the results of operations
of PETsMART.com under the consolidation method of accounting for all subsequent periods. The Company
accounted for the Transaction as a step acquisition and allocated approximately $7,904,000 for the excess of
the consideration paid over the underlying net assets acquired to goodwill.

In June 2001, the Company purchased 1,020,789 shares of convertible voting preferred stock from
minority shareholders for approximately $741,000, which increased its voting ownership to a requisite
percentage for income tax reporting purposes that will allow the Company to utilize a portion of
PETsMART.com's net operating loss carryforwards. As a result, in the second quarter of Ñscal 2001, the
Company reversed valuation allowances of deferred tax assets of $18,885,000, eliminated the net goodwill of
$8,575,000 and recorded a tax beneÑt of $10,310,000. In January 2002, the Company acquired all of the
remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders for approximately $9,500,000 . The balance
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of the minority interest as of February 3, 2002 was $604,000. The additional investment and the minority
interest represented a net amount of $8,896,000, which was recorded as goodwill in Ñscal 2001. The Pasadena,
California-based operations moved its administrative functions to the Company's oÇce in Phoenix, Arizona
during Ñscal 2002.

The minority interest in PETsMART.com held by the Company during Ñscal 2000 and 2001, consisted
primarily of convertible voting preferred stock, which was convertible at Ñxed conversion rates into common
stock of PETsMART.com at the holder's option. The minority interest in the losses of PETsMART.com for
Ñscal 2001 and 2000 (recognized from the Transaction Date to January 28, 2001) was approximately
$2,296,000 and $300,000, respectively, and has been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Note 3 Ì Investments

The Company has an investment in MMI Holdings, Inc. (""MMIH''), a provider of veterinary and other
pet related services. MMIH, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Medical Management International, Inc.,
(""MMI''), operates full-service veterinary hospitals and wellness hospitals inside approximately 300 of the
PETsMART stores, under the name BanÑeld, The Pet HospitalTM. The Company's investment consists of
common and convertible preferred stock. The Company accounts for its investment using the cost method, as
the Company lacks the ability to exercise signiÑcant inÖuence over MMIH's operating and Ñnancial policies.
The Company's ownership interest in the voting common and convertible preferred stock of MMIH as of
February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002 was approximately 15% and 19%, respectively, or 2,679,706 shares at
$5,378,000 cost. At February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, the Company owned approximately 31% and
36%, respectively, in the combined voting and non-voting stock of MMIH. The Company's percentage
ownership decreased due to additional contributions by another investor. As of February 2, 2003 and
February 3, 2002, the total equity investment in non-voting convertible preferred stock was 4,984,837 shares or
$26,995,000. Also, contractual payments of approximately $1,321,000 related to the transfer of assets were
made by the Company in a prior year, totaling $33,694,000 for the investment in MMIH. The voting
convertible preferred stock may be converted into common stock at any time, at the option of the holder. The
non-voting convertible preferred stock is convertible into common stock upon the earlier of June 1, 2011 or an
acquisition of MMIH.

The Company receives licensing fees from MMI for the space in the Company's retail stores occupied by
veterinary services, which is recorded as income from leased departments within cost of sales in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Licensing fees are determined by Ñxed costs per square
foot, adjusted for the number of days the hospitals are open and sales volumes achieved. Licensing fees of
approximately $8,293,000, $6,727,000 and $6,853,000 was recognized during Ñscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. Additionally, licensing fees receivable from MMI totaled $2,882,000 and $2,182,000 at Febru-
ary 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, respectively, and were included in receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.
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Note 4 Ì Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

February 2, February 3,
2003 2002

LandÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 691 $ 691

Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,776 8,965

Furniture, Ñxtures and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 234,265 167,636

Leasehold improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 230,978 174,000

Computer software ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 32,885 34,101

Buildings, equipment, and computer software under capital leasesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 218,012 255,256

725,607 640,649

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 261,667 251,091

463,940 389,558

Construction in progressÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26,007 5,277

$489,947 $394,835

Accumulated amortization of equipment, computer software and buildings under capital leases approxi-
mated $57,056,000 and $87,997,000 as of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, respectively. In Ñscal 2001,
the Company entered into sale-leaseback transactions for one distribution center and 26 stores, resulting in the
addition to capital leases of $107,930,000.

Interest costs incurred and interest capitalized on construction in progress is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

Interest costs incurred ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $20,836 $27,436 $23,443

Less: interest costs capitalizedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 58

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $20,836 $27,436 $23,385

Note 5 Ì Notes Receivable from OÇcers

During Ñscal 2000, the Company provided loans to certain oÇcers to be used only for the purpose of
purchasing shares of the Company's common stock on the open market. These loans mature Ñve years after
issuance and accrue interest at 7.75% per annum, with principal and interest due at maturity. The oÇcers are
required to hold the common stock for a minimum of 12 to 18 months. The loans are collateralized by the
Company's common stock purchased by the oÇcers. The loans are full recourse and must be repaid in full,
including accrued interest, upon the earlier of the scheduled maturity date or an event of default, including
among others, sale of the underlying common stock or the oÇcer's termination of employment. As of
February 3, 2002, notes receivable and accrued interest due from oÇcers was $4,487,000. As of February 2,
2003, the notes had been repaid in full, and the Company will not make any new loans to its oÇcers under this
program in the future.
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Note 6 Ì Special Charges

Store Closure Reserves

Since 1996, the Company has incurred costs related to merger, integration, store closure, and other
business restructuring costs in connection with certain acquisitions. As of February 2, 2003 and February 3,
2002, the reserve balances of $1,868,000 and $3,357,000, respectively, relate to the liability associated with the
closed stores, and the related store and equipment lease termination costs.

Charges totaling approximately $1,282,000, $13,452,000 and $2,710,000 were recorded in Ñscal 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, for future rental payments on closed stores and terminated subleases. The costs
for future rental payments associated with closed stores were calculated using the net present value method, at
a risk-free interest rate, over the remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income. Approximately
$156,000 reduction to the charges was recorded in Ñscal 2002 to adjust previously established restructuring
reserves, as discussed above, due to the change in sublease assumptions. Approximately $2,931,000 of the
charges in Ñscal 2001 was to increase previously established restructuring reserves, as discussed above. The
adjustments and charges were recorded in general and administrative expenses. The Company can make no
assurances that additional charges related to these closed stores will not be required based on the changing real
estate environment.

Reorganization of PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com

During the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001, the Company approved a plan to move administrative functions,
during Ñscal 2002, of PETsMART Direct, Inc. (""PETsMART Direct'') and PETsMART.com, Inc.
(""PETsMART.com'') to the Company's administrative oÇce located in Phoenix, Arizona. PETsMART
Direct has, among other functions, the merchandising, human resource, and Ñnance operations provided by
the personnel in Arizona under a shared services arrangement. As a result of the reorganization of these
functions, the Company eliminated 44 positions during Ñscal 2002, and recorded severance charges of
approximately $431,000 in Ñscal 2001. The PETsMART Direct facility, located in Brockport, New York,
continues to handle warehousing and fulÑllment for the pet and equine catalogs, e-commerce sites, and in-
store State Line Tack departments, and manages customer service for all direct marketing operations. Also as
part of the plan, the Company closed Ñve small neighborhood PetWise retail stores located in upstate New
York, and recorded a reserve in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001 of approximately $698,000 for the remaining
oÇces and retail store lease obligations. In Ñscal 2001, the Company also sold a subsidiary of PETsMART
Direct for approximately $800,000, which resulted in a loss of approximately $906,000. Included in the loss on
sale of subsidiary is a $400,000 reserve against a note received as part of the purchase price, which is classiÑed
in long-term other assets, and is not part of the restructure reserve liability.

In January 2002, the Company acquired all of the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority
stockholders for approximately $9,500,000. In Ñscal 2002, the Pasadena, California-based operations moved
its administrative functions to the Company's oÇce in Phoenix, Arizona. As a result of the reorganization of
these functions, the Company eliminated 46 positions during Ñscal 2002, and recorded severance charges of
approximately $979,000 in Ñscal 2001. The Company also recorded a reserve of $80,000 in Ñscal 2001 for the
remaining lease obligations associated with the PETsMART.com oÇce space in Pasadena, California.
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The activity related to the 1996 closed store reserve, as well as the remaining lease obligations for closed
stores and oÇce associated with the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com reorganization was as follows
(in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

Opening balance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 3,357 $ 4,822 $10,410

(Adjustments)/charges Ì 1996 closed stores ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (156) 2,931 Ì

Charges Ì reorganization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 778 Ì

Cash payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,333) (5,174) (5,588)

Ending balance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,868 $ 3,357 $ 4,822

The activity related to the loss on sale of subsidiary, Ñxed asset write downs, and severance associated
with the reorganization of PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com for Ñscal 2002 and 2001 was as follows
(in thousands):

Fiscal 2002 Activity

February 3, Cash Non-cash February 2,
2002 Charges Payments Activity 2003

Severance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,410 $Ì $(1,410) $Ì $Ì

$1,410 $Ì $(1,410) $Ì $Ì

Fiscal 2001 Activity

January 28, Cash Non-cash February 3,
2001 Charges Payments Activity 2002

Loss on sale of subsidiary ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $Ì $ 506 $Ì $ (506) $ Ì

Fixed asset write downs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 580 Ì (580) Ì

SeveranceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1,410 Ì Ì 1,410

$Ì $2,496 $Ì $(1,086) $1,410

In Ñscal 2001, accrued severance was classiÑed as a component of other accrued expenses.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Asset Write-Downs

During Ñscal 2001, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $6,927,000, a write-
down of inventory of approximately $2,100,000, and a charge of approximately $720,000 for other asset write-
downs and reserves.

As a result of continued losses incurred at its PETsMART Direct subsidiary, and an analysis of the
current business model, the Company performed an impairment analysis in accordance with SFAS No. 121,
""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of ''. The
analysis indicated an impairment of $6,927,000 associated with PETsMART Direct's building, Ñxtures,
equipment, software, and goodwill, which was recorded in general and administrative expenses. The fair value
of such assets was determined based on market appraisals and analysis of expected future discounted cash
Öows. Also in Ñscal 2001, the Company analyzed the inventory at PETsMART Direct and decided to discount
or dispose of certain items, resulting in a $2,100,000 charge to cost of sales to record the inventory at its
estimated net realizable value. The Company can make no assurances that additional charges will not be
required based on continued evaluation of the PETsMART Direct business model.
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Note 7 Ì Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income tax expense, and minority interest is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

United StatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $154,130 $43,053 $(28,276)

ForeignÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (317) 2,190 (201)

$153,813 $45,243 $(28,477)

The income tax expense before minority interest consists of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2003 2002 2001

Current provision:

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 72,567 $ 30,104 $ 3,389

StateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,332 4,424 2,350

80,899 34,528 5,739

Deferred provision (beneÑt):

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (16,790) (26,625) 1,409

StateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 849 (2,426) (4,117)

ForeignÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 2,495 (304)

(15,941) (26,556) (3,012)

Income tax expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 64,958 $ 7,972 $ 2,727

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Company's eÅective tax rate before
minority interest is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, 2003 February 3, 2002 January 28, 2001

Dollars % Dollars % Dollars %

Provision at federal statutory tax rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $53,834 35.0% $ 15,835 35.0% $(9,967) 35.0%

State income taxes, net of federal income tax
beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,968 3.9 1,299 2.9 (1,148) 4.0

Foreign taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 38 .1 (233) 0.8

Costs associated with the settlement of litigation 5,545 3.6 Ì Ì Ì Ì

Enacted change in foreign income tax rateÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 1,185 2.6 Ì Ì

Non-deductible corporate joint venture losses ÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 11,588 (40.7)

Change in valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (627) (0.4) (10,923) (24.1) 1,540 (5.4)

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 238 0.1 538 1.1 947 (3.3)

$64,958 42.2% $ 7,972 17.6% $ 2,727 (9.6)%
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The Company recorded deferred income tax assets in the following Ñnancial statement line items in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

February 2, February 3,
2003 2002

Deferred income taxes, current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $29,072 $15,716

Deferred income taxes, noncurrentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25,798 23,806

Net deferred income tax assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $54,870 $39,522

The components of the net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets are as follows (in thousands):

February 2, February 3,
2003 2002

Deferred income tax assets:

Deferred rents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 7,088 $ 7,865

Reserve for closed stores ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,497 2,434

Miscellaneous reserves and accrualsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,625 1,691

Employee beneÑt expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,709 4,950

Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,141 949

Net operating loss carryforwardsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37,427 42,010

Capital loss carryforwards ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46,074 50,385

Income tax credits ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20 497

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,214 4,075

Total deferred income tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 124,795 114,856

Valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (64,864) (70,245)

Net deferred income tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 59,931 44,611

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Inventory reserveÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,537) (2,005)

Inventory uniform capitalization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,524) (3,084)

Total deferred income tax liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,061) (5,089)

Net deferred income tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 54,870 $ 39,522

The Company records a valuation allowance on the deferred income tax assets to reduce the total to an
amount that management believes is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowances at
February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002 are based upon the Company's estimates of the future realization of
deferred income tax assets. Valuation allowances at February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 were principally to
oÅset certain deferred income tax assets for operating and capital loss carryforwards. The change in the
valuation allowance during Ñscal 2002 and 2001 did not provide a complete income statement beneÑt due
primarily to a reduction in deferred tax assets for certain net operating and capital loss carryforwards, for
which no beneÑt was recorded.

As of February 2, 2003, the Company had, for income tax reporting purposes, federal net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $93,372,000 which expire in varying amounts between 2019 and 2020, foreign
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4,863,000 which expire in varying amounts between 2003
and 2008, state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $128,514,000 which expire in varying
amounts between 2003 and 2019, and capital loss carryforwards of approximately $116,432,000 to oÅset future
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capital gains, if any, which expire in 2004. No deferred tax asset has been recorded for the foreign net
operating loss carryforwards as it is anticipated that any beneÑt associated with their utilization would be oÅset
by United States residual tax. The federal net operating loss carryforwards are subject to certain limitations on
their utilization pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar
limitations apply to certain state net operating loss carryforwards under state tax laws.

During 2001, the Company increased its voting ownership in PETsMART.com to the requisite
percentage for income tax reporting purposes that will allow the Company to utilize a portion of
PETsMART.com's net operating loss carryforwards. As a result, the Company reversed previously established
valuation allowances of approximately $18,885,000, eliminated the remaining goodwill associated with the
Transaction, and recorded a tax beneÑt of $10,310,000. EÅective Ñscal 2001, losses from PETsMART.com are
included in the Company's consolidated federal income tax return.

Note 8 Ì Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average of common
shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income or loss
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for dilutive
stock options and dilutive common shares assumed to be issued on conversion of the Company's Notes.

A reconciliation of the basic and diluted per share computations for Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000 is as
follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, 2003 February 3, 2002 January 28, 2001

Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Average Share Average Share Average Share

Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Loss Shares Amount

Net income (loss) per
common share Ì
basicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $88,855 134,148 $0.66 $39,567 112,006 $0.35 $(30,904) 111,351 $(0.28)

EÅect of dilutive
securities:

Options and
dilutive eÅect
of subordinated
notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 694 7,534 0.03 Ì 2,061 Ì Ì Ì Ì

Net income (loss) per
common share Ì
diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $89,549 141,682 $0.63 $39,567 114,067 $0.35 $(30,904) 111,351 $(0.28)

As of February 3, 2002, no shares of common stock had been issued upon conversion of the Notes issued
in November 1997 (see Note 10). During February and March 2002, the entire balance of the Notes were
retired for approximately $275,000 in cash and approximately 19,800,000 shares of common stock. These
shares were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for Ñscal 2001 or 2000 due to the anti-
dilutive eÅect they would have on earnings (loss) per share if converted.

Due to the Company's loss in Ñscal 2000, a calculation of diluted earnings per share is not required. In
Ñscal 2000, potentially dilutive securities consisted of options convertible into approximately 125,000 shares of
common stock. In Ñscal 2002 and 2001, options to purchase approximately 609,300 and 2,616,000 shares of
common stock, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because the options' exercise prices were greater than the average market price of common shares.
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In March 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved the purchase of up to $35,000,000 of
common stock, annually for each of the next three years, ending March 2006.

Note 9 Ì Employee BeneÑt Plan

The Company has a deÑned contribution plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
(the ""401(k) Plan''). The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all employees that meet certain service
requirements. The Company matches employee contributions, up to speciÑed percentages of those contribu-
tions, as approved by the Board of Directors. During Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000 the Company recognized
expense related to matching contributions under the 401(k) Plan of $2,378,000, $2,139,000, and $1,585,000,
respectively.

Note 10 Ì Subordinated Convertible Notes

In November 1997, the Company sold $200,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 63/4% Subordinated
Convertible Notes due 2004. The outstanding Notes were convertible into the Company's common stock at
any time prior to maturity at a conversion price of $8.75 per share, subject to adjustment under certain
conditions.

During Ñscal 2000, the Company repurchased and retired Notes with a face value of $18,750,000 at a
discounted price of $13,630,000. In connection with the repurchase of the Notes, the related portion of the
unamortized deferred Ñnancing costs of $432,000 was written oÅ and included in the determination of the gain
on extinguishment of debt. The Company recognized a gain of approximately $4,688,000, as a reduction to
general and administrative expenses. The Company also reclassiÑed the related income taxes of approximately
$1,876,000 to income tax expense (see Note 1).

During Ñscal 2001, the Company repurchased and retired Notes with a face value of $7,750,000 at a
discounted price of $6,382,000. In connection with the repurchase of the Notes, the related portion of the
unamortized deferred Ñnancing costs of $178,000 was written oÅ and included in the determination of the gain
on extinguishment of debt. The Company recognized a gain of approximately $1,190,000, as a reduction to
general and administrative expenses. The Company also reclassiÑed the related income tax expense for Ñscal
2001 of approximately $476,000 to income tax expense (see Note 1). The remaining principle outstanding as
of February 3, 2002 was $173,500,000.

In February and March, 2002, the remaining balance of $173,500,000 of the Notes were called for
redemption, resulting in the repurchase of the Notes for approximately $275,000 in cash and the conversion of
the remainder into approximately 19,800,000 shares of the Company's common stock at a conversion price of
$8.75 per share. As a result of the redemption, unamortized debt issuance costs of $2,357,000 and accrued
interest of $3,864,000 were reclassiÑed to stockholders' equity, resulting in a net increase of $1,507,000.

Note 11 Ì Common Stock OÅering

In July 2002, the Company Ñled a registration statement, on Form S-3, for a public oÅering of
14,500,000 shares of its common stock, plus an over-allotment option of 2,175,000 shares. Of these shares,
13,182,584 were oÅered by entities aÇliated with Carrefour SA, and 1,317,416 shares, plus the shares in the
over-allotment option, were oÅered by the Company.

On August 5, 2002, the Company completed the sale of 1,317,416 shares of common stock for $13.40 per
share, resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $16,859,000. On August 12, 2002, the
underwriters exercised the over-allotment option and purchased 2,175,000 additional shares of common stock
for $13.40 per share, resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $27,833,000. Costs
associated with the oÅering were approximately $767,000 and were accounted for as a reduction of the
proceeds.
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Note 12 Ì Financing Arrangements and Lease Obligations

Bank Credit Facility

On April 30, 2001, the Company entered into a new credit arrangement with a group of lenders that
provides for borrowings of up to $250,000,000, including a sublimit of up to $150,000,000 for letters of credit,
and was to expire on April 30, 2004. Borrowings and letter of credit issuances under the facility are subject to a
borrowing base and bear interest, at the Company's option, at either a bank's prime rate plus 0% to 0.50% or
LIBOR plus 2.00% to 2.50%, at the Company's option. Due to the Company's desire for greater Öexibility in
the Ñnancial covenants and the historically limited use of the credit facility, the credit facility was amended on
June 20, 2002 to reduce the available commitment to $200,000,000, extend the maturity by two years to
April 30, 2006, and amend certain covenants. The credit facility restricts the payment of dividends. The
arrangement is secured by substantially all personal property assets of the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries and certain real property of the Company. At February 2, 2003, there were no borrowings
outstanding on this credit arrangement.

Letters of Credit

We issue letters of credit for guarantees provided for the structured lease facilities, insurance programs,
import purchases and utilities. As of February 2, 2003, $47.4 million was outstanding under our letters of
credit.

Operating and Capital Leases

The Company leases substantially all of its stores, retail distribution centers, corporate oÇces, and certain
equipment under noncancellable operating leases. The terms of the store leases, other than leases under the
structured lease facilities, described below, generally range from 10 to 25 years and typically allow us to renew
for three to Ñve additional Ñve-year terms. Store leases, excluding renewal options, expire at various dates
through 2020. Certain leases require payment of property taxes, utilities, common area maintenance,
insurance and, if annual sales at certain stores exceed speciÑed amounts, provide for additional rents. To date,
the Company has paid minimal additional rent. In addition, certain leases provide for variable rent payments
based on prevailing interest rates. Total operating lease rent expense incurred, net of sublease income, during
Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $170,842,000, $195,107,000, and $184,317,000, respectively.

The Company has entered into sale and leaseback transactions for several of its store locations, which
included buildings and underlying land. Such assets were sold at cost and were leased back at terms similar to
those of other leased stores. The Company also leases certain Ñxtures and equipment, computer hardware and
software under capital leases.
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At February 2, 2003, the future minimum annual rental commitments under all noncancelable leases
were as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital
Leases Leases

2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 174,328 $ 23,745

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 204,455 20,452

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 168,035 19,809

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 163,324 19,928

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 160,406 20,464

Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,055,400 242,387

Total minimum rental commitments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,925,948 346,785

Less: amounts representing interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 179,778

Present value of obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 167,007

Less: current portionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,564

Long-term obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $159,443

The operating lease payment schedule above is shown net of sublease income. Sublease income for
operating and capital leases is as follows: 2003: $2,641,000; 2004: $2,457,000; 2005: $2,502,000;
2006: $2,558,000; 2007: $2,580,000, and thereafter, $12,013,000. The store operating leases represent those for
open stores, closed stores, and stores to be opened in 2003 that have a lease agreement.

In the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2002, the Company entered into a purchase agreement for an aircraft that
will require a Ñnal payment of approximately $18.5 million in the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003.

The Company receives licensing fees from MMI for the space in the Company's retail stores occupied by
veterinary services, which is recorded as income from leased departments within cost of sales in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Licensing fees are determined by Ñxed costs per square
foot, adjusted for the number of days the hospitals are open and sales volumes achieved. Income of
approximately $8,293,000, $6,727,000 and $6,853,000 was recognized during Ñscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. Additionally, licensing fees receivable from MMI totaled $2,882,000 and $2,182,000 as of
February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002, respectively, and was included in receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Structured Lease Facilities

The Company has entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of structured lease Ñnancing.
The structured lease Ñnancing facilities provide a special purpose entity, not aÇliated with the Company, with
the necessary Ñnancing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once construction has been
completed, another special purpose entity, also not aÇliated with the Company, leases the completed stores to
the Company for a four-year term. After the four-year term has expired, the Company is required to pay oÅ
the balance of the Ñnancing, provide for the sale of the properties to a third party, or pay a guaranteed residual
amount. During Ñscal 2001, two leasing terms expired, and as a result, the Company paid the Ñnancing
remaining on one distribution center and twenty-six stores, and concurrently sold these properties to a third
party and entered into lease agreements with expiration dates through 2021.

The Company has one outstanding special purpose entity lease remaining as of February 2, 2003, which
encompasses seven stores and two properties. Included in the operating leases for 2004 is the Ñnal payment of
approximately $27,713,000. The lease is supported by a letter of credit issued under our revolving credit
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facility, which contains certain terms with which we must comply. There are no substantive Ñnancial
covenants associated with the lease facility.

The FASB issued FIN No. 46, ""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,'' an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, ""Consolidated Financial Statements,'' on January 17, 2003. FIN 46
requires that an entity holding a majority of the ""variable interests'' of a ""variable interest entity'' must
consolidate the operations of the variable interest entity of which it is the primary beneÑciary. As currently
constituted, the Company's structured lease Ñnancing facilities may involve a variable interest entity of which
we are the primary beneÑciary. If so determined, the Company would be required to consolidate the seven
stores and two properties at the beginning of the third quarter of Ñscal 2003, which would increase Ñxed assets
and debt by $27,713,000, and also have an impact on depreciation expense. However, the Company may be
able to restructure these leases so as not to require consolidation. The Company is also considering other
options related to the disposition of these properties, and can provide no assurance that a loss or impairment
charge will not be incurred due to current real estate market conditions.

Note 13 Ì Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

On January 16, 2001, certain former stockholders of Pet City Holdings, a U.K. corporation (""Pet City''),
including Richard Northcott, who was a PETsMART board member from December 1996 to September
1997, Ñled two complaints, one in federal court and one in state court, seeking damages against PETsMART
and certain of its former or current oÇcers and directors. These plaintiÅs subsequently dismissed the state
court complaint, prior to the issuance of any rulings on the merits, and added the claims from the state
complaint to a consolidated federal complaint. The consolidated complaint related to the 1996 acquisition of
Pet City by PETsMART. PlaintiÅs alleged misrepresentations or omissions that misled the shareholders of
Pet City concerning PETsMART's business, Ñnancial status, and prospects. As a result of a series of
mediations before a retired federal magistrate judge, the parties settled the case out of court in January 2003
and stipulated to a dismissal of plaintiÅs' consolidated complaint with prejudice. The dismissal order was
entered by the court on February 18, 2003. Subsequent to February 2, 2003, the Company paid a settlement
fee of $16,400,000, and in 2001 and 2002, the Company recorded approximately $5,000,000 and $13,200,000,
respectively, for settlement fees and legal costs associated with the litigation.

The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings that it does not believe are material to its
business.

Guarantees

The following is a summary of agreements that the Company has determined are within the scope of
FIN 45, which are speciÑcally grandfathered because the guarantees were in eÅect prior to December 31,
2002. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of February 2, 2003,
except as noted below.

As permitted under Delaware law and the Company's bylaws and certiÑcate of incorporation, the
Company has agreements whereby the Company indemniÑes its oÇcers and directors for certain events or
occurrences while the oÇcer or director is, or was serving, at the request of the Company. The term of the
indemniÑcation period is for the oÇcer's or director's lifetime. The maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make under these indemniÑcation agreements is unlimited;
however, the Company has a directors' and oÇcers' insurance policy that may enable recovery of a portion of
any future amounts paid. Assuming the applicability of coverage and the willingness of the insurer to assume
coverage and subject to certain retention, loss limits and other policy provisions, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of this indemniÑcation obligation is not material. However, no assurances can be given
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that the insurers will not attempt to dispute the validity, applicability or amount of coverage without expensive
and time-consuming litigation against the insurers.

The operating lease for the corporate headquarters buildings in Phoenix, Arizona expires in 2010, and the
stores are under operating lease agreements that expire at various dates through 2020. In the event that the
Company does not exercise its option to extend the term of these leases, the Company guarantees to restore
the properties to certain conditions in place at the time of lease. The Company believes the estimated fair
value of these guarantees are not material.

As of February 2, 2003, the Company had letters of credit for guarantees of $27,713,000 for the
structured lease facilities, $17,150,000 for insurance policies, $2,000,000 for capital lease agreements,
$469,000 for import purchases, and $78,000 for utilities. The liabilities associated with the insurance policies
and capital leases were recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as of February 2, 2003.

Note 14 Ì Stock Incentive Plans

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company had an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that was terminated in February 2002, after the
Ñnal purchase of approximately 282,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $1,006,000. At the Annual
Shareholder Meeting held June 27, 2002, a new Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ""Plan'') was approved
by the Shareholders. Under this Plan, essentially all employees with six or more months of service will be able
to purchase common stock on semi-annual oÅering dates at 85% of the fair market value on the oÅering date
or, if lower, at 85% of the fair market value of the shares on the exercise date. A maximum of 4,000,000 shares
was authorized for purchase. The Ñrst oÅering period began on August 1, 2002 and the Ñrst purchase was
made January 31, 2003 for a total of 186,000 shares and aggregate proceeds of $2,278,000. A total of 394,000
and 607,000 shares were purchased in Ñscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, for aggregate proceeds of $1,322,000
and $1,749,000, respectively.

Restricted Stock Bonus

The Company maintains a Restricted Stock Bonus Plan. Under the terms of the plan, employees of the
Company may be awarded shares of common stock of the Company, subject to approval by the Board of
Directors. The employee is not required to make any cash payment as a condition of receiving the award. The
shares of common stock awarded under this plan are subject to a reacquisition right held by the Company. In
the event that the award recipient's employment by, or service to, the Company is terminated for any reason,
the Company shall simultaneously and automatically reacquire for no consideration all of the unvested shares
of restricted common stock previously awarded to the recipient. The shares of restricted common stock
awarded under this plan vest and are released from the Company's reacquisition right under an accelerated
schedule if the Company's common stock price reaches certain speciÑed targets. If the speciÑed stock price
targets are not reached, the shares nevertheless become 100% vested Ñve years after the award date, provided
that the award recipient has been in continuous service with the Company from the award date.

In Ñscal 1998, the Company awarded 286,000 shares under the plan and recorded approximately
$3,003,000 as deferred compensation with an oÅsetting credit to additional paid-in capital. Such deferred
compensation is being amortized ratably by a charge to income over the Ñve-year term of the restricted stock
awards. During Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000 approximately 9,200, 25,000 and 140,000 shares, respectively, were
reacquired by the Company due to employee terminations.

During Ñscal 2002, one of the accelerated vesting targets was reached, and the Company recorded the
vesting of 50% of the shares outstanding at that time or 57,625 shares. At February 2, 2003, approximately
54,000 shares were outstanding under this plan, none of which were vested.
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Stock Options

The Company may grant under its 1995 Equity Incentive Plan and 1997 Equity Incentive Plan either
incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options or other stock awards to purchase up to 22,083,314 shares
of common stock to employees including oÇcers, consultants or directors of the Company, at fair market
value at the date of grant. At February 2, 2003, stock options to purchase 14,493,366 shares of common stock
were outstanding with exercise prices ranging from $0.72 to $28.75 per share. Options vest over a period of
three to four years and expire ten years after the date of grant. As of February 2, 2003, stock options to
purchase 471,000 shares of common stock were also outstanding under the Company's 1996 Non-Employee
Directors Equity Plan with exercise prices ranging from $3.03 to $19.00 per share. The 1996 Non-Employee
Directors Equity Plan expired on May 11, 2002, and no further options may be granted under this plan.

Activity in all of the Company's stock option plans is as follows (in thousands):

Weighted
Average Exercise

Shares Price per Share

Outstanding, January 30, 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,786 $ 9.80

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,472 3.61

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (40) 1.85

Canceled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,262) 10.09

Outstanding, January 28, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,956 $ 8.09

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,244 4.03

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (847) 5.79

Canceled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2,097) 7.97

Outstanding, February 3, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,256 $ 7.11

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,453 11.33

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,569) 6.86

Canceled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (647) 6.61

Outstanding, February 2, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,493 $ 8.20

As of February 2, 2003, February 3, 2002, and January 28, 2001, the Company had 8,512 options, 8,456
options and 6,981 options exercisable, respectively.

F-28



PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

The following table summarizes information about the Company's stock options as of February 2, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number Remaining Average Number Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

(In thousands) (In thousands)

$ 0.717 Ó $ 3.000 444 7.78 $ 2.44 397 $ 2.42

$ 3.030 Ó $ 3.470 2,763 8.02 $ 3.05 1,176 $ 3.06

$ 3.625 Ó $ 5.000 1,855 7.07 $ 4.20 1,163 $ 4.13

$ 5.219 Ó $ 7.188 473 6.00 $ 6.78 401 $ 6.93

$ 7.340 Ó $ 7.531 1,029 6.23 $ 7.52 953 $ 7.53

$ 7.563 Ó $ 8.450 1,554 5.64 $ 7.90 1,427 $ 7.85

$ 8.500 Ó $ 9.938 919 5.14 $ 9.39 799 $ 9.44

$10.375 Ó $10.550 2,645 8.73 $10.54 94 $10.40

$10.583 Ó $12.000 872 3.34 $11.69 849 $11.70

$12.083 Ó $15.375 1,316 5.55 $13.99 758 $14.37

$15.640 Ó $28.750 623 5.05 $21.26 495 $22.03

$ 0.717 Ó $28.750 14,493 6.76 $ 8.20 8,512 $ 8.31

Stockholder Rights Plan

On August 4, 1997, the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan under which one preferred share
purchase right was distributed on August 29, 1997 for each share of common stock held on that date. No
certiÑcates for the rights will be issued unless a person or group, subject to certain exceptions, acquires 15% or
more of the Company's common stock or announces a tender oÅer for 15% or more of the common stock.
Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company, upon such event, one one-hundredth
of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at a price of $65.00 per
one one-hundredth of a preferred share. Each preferred share is designed to be the economic equivalent of 100
common shares. The rights expire August 28, 2007, and are subject to redemption at a price of $0.001 in
speciÑed circumstances.

Note 15 Ì Supplemental Schedule of Cash Flows

Supplemental cash Öow information for Ñscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000 was as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2002 2001 2000

Interest paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 19,260 $ 24,405 $23,810

Income taxes paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 74,009 $ 9,427 $ 3,923

Conversion of subordinated notes to common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $174,732 $ Ì $ Ì

Assets acquired using capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 11,263 $107,930 $11,690

Note 16 Ì Financial Information by Business Segment

As of February 3, 2002, the Company had three operating segments; PETsMART North America, which
included all retail stores, PETsMART Direct, which included the Company's equine catalog and Internet
operations, and PETsMART.com, which included the Company's pet catalog and Internet operations. As a
result of the reorganization of the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com operations and the Ñnancial
results of these operating segments during the thirteen-week period ended May 5, 2002, the Company has
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evaluated its segment reporting requirements under SFAS No. 131, ""Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information,'' and determined that the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com
operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for disclosure as reportable segments. As a result,
all segment disclosure information for Ñscal 2001 and 2000 have been revised to reÖect the current single
reportable segment.

Note 17 Ì Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2003 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $645,788 $651,466 $657,406 $740,524
Gross proÑt(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 181,538 186,391 191,614 228,497
Operating income(2)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41,104 39,783 37,012 53,947
Income before income tax expense(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 36,302 34,970 32,907 49,634
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 22,145 $ 21,509 $ 20,649 $ 24,552

Earnings per common share Ì basic:
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.18 $ 0.16 $ 0.15 $ 0.18

Earnings per common share Ì diluted:
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.17 $ 0.15 $ 0.14 $ 0.17

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding Ì basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 125,561 133,718 137,839 139,292

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 138,389 139,853 143,994 144,717

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $582,198 $582,433 $598,615 $737,766
Gross proÑt(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 149,692 148,051 160,810 214,932
Operating income (loss)(2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,737 (7,627) 14,242 57,320
Income (loss) before income tax expense and minority

interest(2)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,145 (13,744) 9,239 48,603
Minority interest in subsidiary loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 583 720 462 531
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,236 $ 2,818 $ 5,817 $ 29,696

Earnings per common share Ì basic:
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.01 $ 0.03 $ 0.05 $ 0.26

Earnings per common share Ì diluted:
Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 0.05 $ 0.23

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding Ì basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 111,511 111,657 111,890 112,346

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 111,888 113,636 114,398 135,822

(1) In 2000 and 2001, we reclassiÑed certain warehousing and distribution costs related to our PETsMART
Direct operations to cost of sales. Also, in 2000 and 2001 and in the Ñrst quarter of 2002, we reclassiÑed
certain costs of payroll, fringe beneÑts and supplies relating to our training and PETsHOTEL services, to
cost of sales. These costs had been classiÑed in prior periods as operating expenses.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

(2) We adopted SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002,'' that among other things, rescinded SFAS
No. 4, ""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt'' as of August 4, 2002, and as a result,
reclassiÑed the gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million and $4.7 million for 2001 and 2000,
respectively, as a reduction to general and administrative expenses. We also reclassiÑed the related
income tax expense of $0.5 million and $1.9 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, to income tax
expense.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PETsMART, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the consolidated Ñnancial statements of PETsMART, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
""Company'') as of February 2, 2003 and February 3, 2002 and for each of the three Ñscal years in the period
ended February 2, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 4, 2003, (which report expresses an
unqualiÑed opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph concerning the adoption of a new accounting
principle in Ñscal 2002); such consolidated Ñnancial statements and report are included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K. Our audits also included the consolidated Ñnancial statement schedule of the Company, listed in
Item 15(a)(2). This consolidated Ñnancial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits. In our opinion, such consolidated
Ñnancial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated Ñnancial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 4, 2003
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SCHEDULE II

PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Balance at
Beginning Charged to End

Description of Period Expense Deductions of Period

(In thousands)

Valuation reserve deducted in the balance sheet from the
asset to which it applies:

Merchandise inventories:

Fiscal year 2000, Lower of cost or market
 allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,516 $6,201 $(4,428) $4,289

Fiscal year 2001, Lower of cost or market
 allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,289 $3,078 $(4,366) $3,001

Fiscal year 2002, Lower of cost or market
 allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $3,001 $1,703 $(3,292) $1,412
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APPENDIX A

PETsMART SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA(1)

Fiscal Year Ended(2)

Feb. 2, 2003 Feb. 3, 2002 Jan. 28, 2001 Jan. 30, 2000 Jan. 31, 1999

(In thousands, except per share amounts and operating data)

Historical Statement of Operations
Data:

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 2,695,184 $ 2,501,012 $ 2,224,222 $ 2,110,316 $ 2,109,322

Gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 788,040 673,485 528,994 551,241 509,694

Operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 498,343 483,657 423,550 400,753 390,285

General and administrative
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 117,851 119,156 80,196 62,681 61,094

Loss on disposal of subsidiaryÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 45,669 Ì

Merger and business integration
costsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì (1,808)

Operating incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 171,846 70,672 25,248 42,138 60,123

Interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,803 2,007 2,769 2,862 3,092

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20,836) (27,436) (23,385) (22,756) (24,109)

Income before equity loss in
PETsMART.com, income tax
expense, minority interest, and
cumulative eÅect of a change
in accounting principle ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 153,813 45,243 4,632 22,244 39,106

Equity loss in PETsMART.comÏÏ Ì Ì (33,109) (29,061) Ì

Net income (loss)(3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 88,855 $ 39,567 $ (30,904) $ (32,422) $ 23,269

Earnings Per Share Data:

Income (loss) per share Ì basic
before cumulative eÅect of a
change in accounting principle ÏÏÏ $ 0.66 $ 0.35 $ (0.28) $ (0.28) $ 0.20

Income (loss) per share Ì diluted
before cumulative eÅect of a
change in accounting principle ÏÏÏ $ 0.63 $ 0.35 $ (0.28) $ (0.28) $ 0.20

Net income (loss) per share Ì
basicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.66 $ 0.35 $ (0.28) $ (0.28) $ 0.20

Net income (loss) per share Ì
diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.63 $ 0.35 $ (0.28) $ (0.28) $ 0.20

Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding Ì
basicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 134,148 112,006 111,351 114,940 116,281

Weighted average number of
common and common equivalent
shares outstanding Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏ 141,682 114,067 111,351 114,940 117,085

Selected Operating Data:(8)

Stores open at end of periodÏÏÏÏÏ 583 560 533 484 534

Average square footage(4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,943,338 13,482,074 13,234,699 12,075,561 11,417,473

Net sales per square foot(5) ÏÏÏÏ $ 188.69 $ 177.28 $ 160.80 $ 163.16 $ 174.94

Net sales growth ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.8% 12.4% 5.4% 0.0% 17.8%

Increase in comparable store
sales(6)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9.6% 6.5% 1.4% 4.6% 6.3%
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Fiscal Year Ended(2)

Feb. 2, 2003 Feb. 3, 2002 Jan. 28, 2001 Jan. 30, 2000 Jan. 31, 1999

(In thousands, except per share amounts and operating data)

Selected Balance Sheet Data:(8)

Merchandise inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 257,090 $ 271,342 $ 322,462 $ 377,298 $ 336,058

Working capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 292,947 $ 200,642 $ 195,050 $ 280,311 $ 296,307

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,158,856 $ 961,103 $ 782,147 $ 835,390 $ 931,999

Total debt(7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 167,007 $ 341,387 $ 253,936 $ 276,544 $ 296,205

Total stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 681,199 $ 325,806 $ 280,579 $ 314,424 $ 364,818

Current ratioÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.02 1.73 1.83 2.18 2.10

Long-term debt-to-equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23% 101% 87% 84% 77%

Total debt-to-capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20% 51% 48% 47% 45%

(1) Certain items have been reclassiÑed to conform to current year presentation.

(2) Fiscal 2001 consisted of 53 weeks; all other years reported consisted of 52 weeks.

(3) Includes a $528,000 charge in Ñscal 1999 for the cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting principle,
net of income tax beneÑt. Fiscal year 2000 includes an allocation of losses for minority interest in
PETsMART.com of $300,000. Fiscal year 2001 includes an allocation of losses for minority interest in
PETsMART.com of $2,296,000.

(4) Average square footage is the mathematical average of square footage at the beginning of the year and
square footage at the end of the year, and includes the square footage used by the veterinary hospitals.

(5) Net sales per square foot are calculated by dividing net sales, excluding catalog and Internet sales, by
average square footage. Catalog and Internet sales for Ñscal 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 were
$64,216,000, $110,889,000, $96,042,000, $106,403,000, and $103,873,000, respectively. Net sales per
square foot may be considered a ""non-GAAP Ñnancial measure'' as deÑned in Item 10(e) of
Regulation S-K. Management believes that this presentation provides useful information to investors
regarding the results of operations of our stores.

(6) North American retail stores only, excludes catalog and Internet sales in all periods, and includes only
stores open at least 52 weeks. Fiscal 2001 data has been adjusted to reÖect the Ñrst 52 weeks of the
53-week Ñscal year.

(7) Includes capital lease obligations.

(8) U.K. subsidiary was sold during Ñscal 1999, and is excluded entirely from the related 1999 selected
operating and balance sheet data presented except for stockholders' equity data. Data for Ñscal 1998
includes the U.K. subsidiary.
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In 2002, PETsMART executed 
against our strategy.We grew. And we
built the platform for a strong future. 

But we’re still hungry. 

And we won’t stop until we’re satisfied.

PETsMART, Inc., is the largest specialty retailer of services and solutions for the lifetime needs of pets. 

The company operates more than 590 pet stores in the United States and Canada, as well as a 

large pet supply catalog business and the Internet’s leading online provider of pet products and information 

(www.petsmart.com). PETsMART provides a broad range of competitively priced pet food and supplies, 

and offers complete pet training, grooming and adoption services. 
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